THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

New Hasmpihive
} [ David Rodrigue, P.E.

Department of Transportation

William Cass, P.E, = S,
<= i Assistant Commissioner
Commissioner _
Andre Briere, Colonel, USAF (RET)
Deputy Commissioner
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council November 7, 2024

State House
Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to amend an agreement with the Cooperative Alliance for
Seacoast Transportation (COAST), (Vendor 155553), Dover, New Hampshire, Project #68034I, by
increasing the price limitation by $54,900, from $898,000 to $952,900, effective upon Governor and
Council approval, with no change to the end date of June 30, 2025. The original agreement was
approved by Governor and Council on June 14, 2023, Item #69. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this amendment is available in the Fiscal year 2025 budget:

04-96-96-964010-2916 FY 2025

Public Transportation

(72-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $54,900
EXPLANATION

NHDOT has approved a request to amend funding from Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section
5310 (Section 5310) Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Individuals with Disabilities Program by $54,900,
from $898,000 to $952,900, COAST provides expanded transportation services in the Region 10
Southeast Region Coordinating Council (RCC) service area utilizing Section 5310 funds to support
eligible activities including operating, capital, mobility management, and volunteer driver programs.

The Department’s SFY 2025 operating budget includes funds from the Section 5310 program that
provides funds for capital, contracted services, and mobility management for seniors and individuals
with disabilities in New Hampshire.

COAST, in conjunction with its regional partners as applicable, will provide the remaining required non-
federal matching funds. In the event that Federal Funds become unavailable, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

The Amendment has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the
Department has verified the necessary funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2025 budget.

Copies of the fully executed Agreement are on file at the Secretary of State’s Office and the Department
of Administrative Services, and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the
Department of Transportation.

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING « 7 HAZEN DRIVE » P.O. BOX 483 « CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
TELEPHONE: (603) 271-3734 » FAX: (603) 271-3914 » TDD: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 s WWW.NHDOT.COM



Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Attachments

Sincerely,

D lln Lot
William J. Cass, P.E.
Commissioner




AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

This Grant Amendment (“Amendment”) is entered into this 23 day of X -2V°% October

, 2024, by and between the State of New Hampshlre acting by and through the New
Hampshlrc Departinent of Transportation, 7 Hazen Drive, Concord NH 03302-0483, (hereinafter
referred to as “State™) and Cooperative Alliance For Seacoast Transportation (hereinafter
referred to as “the Grantee”), collectively referred to as (“the Parties™).

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into a Grant| Agreement, approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 14, 2023, Item 69. (hereinafter referred to as “the Grant™);

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Grant as provided in this Amendment; and

WHEREAS, the Grant allows for amendments by, an instrument in writing executed by both

Parties;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions
contained in the Grant, and set forth herein, the Parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

1.

2.

L% ]

Section 1.8, “Grant Limitation” of the G:-1 form is amended to read ($952,900)

|
Amended Exhibit C, Budget, C.1 be amc%nded to include an additional $54,900 of

5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities, for a revised
contract price of $952,900;

a. Table below

This Amendment hereunder shall becomle effective upon approval by the New
Hampshire Governor and Executive Council.

Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this
Amendment, the Grant, and the obligations of the Parties hereunder, shall remain in
full force and effect with the terms and conditions set forth herein.
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EXHIBIT C

BUDGET (REVISED)
: Revised
SFY 2024 | SFY 2025 | Amendment
i Total
FTA Section 5310 [
Contracted Services $172,600 | $172,600 $54,900 $400,100
Mobility Management Activities $166,806 $166,806 $0 $333,612
Regional Mobility Manager Position | $109,594 | $109,594 S0 $219,188
Total Federal Funds $449,000 | $449,000 $54,900 $952,900

Amended Total Grant Funding

!

$952,900

b. Funds are contingent upon Federal appropriations.




IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Parties hereto have set their hands to the date first-written
above.

goopir_jg’: A\h<nc or Seadoast Transportatlon
N2 — . Date: / Zﬂj’ Z’q’
Prmt Name and Tltle?ﬁa )\] LLDL

R\@C “j‘vﬁ-hvﬁ-’-}%

NH Department of Transportation

By: /%0{4 (/ Date: lS/’lJ—/

Print dame and Title ke

Michelle L. Winters Dmormms Rail & Transit

RN BT )

Approved by Attorney General

(-r

By: Date: /&Mé"/ Zé ) 2% 2%
Print Nafne and Title / fo rf /D((rr:.g Aﬁt i
/ 0(/#’(’7

Approved by Governor and Council

G &C Item number: G &C Meeting Date:




COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANPORTATION, DBA:
COAST
EXHIBITS TOCONTRACT

t

Amendment 1

Certificate of Good Standing - Exemption
Certificale of Curporale Vule
Certificate of In;urance
. ETA'=Gé§t?ﬁ€§EE'6%'§ and A;shufli'a;ce.s e &R
FTA Master Agreement

2 CFR Part 200
FTA Section 5310

G&C Item 69 Approved | June 14, 2023




COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOST TRANSPORTATION, DBA: COAST
CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING EXCEMPTION

Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST) does not need a Certificate of

Good Standing because they are an established “public body” per RSA 239:2.




iection 23904 Looperative Alliance tor Seacoast lransportation ktstablished. rFage 1 o1 |

TITLE XX
TRANSPORTATION

CHAPTER 239
COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

Section|239:2

239:2 Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportatlon Established. — There is hereby established a public body
orporate and politic having a distinct legal existence separatc from the state and not.constituting a department or
gency of the state government to be known as the C00peranve Alliance for Seacoast Transportation, also known as
‘OAST. The public purpose of COAST is to acquire, own, and operate or cause to be operated a regional mass
‘ansportation system.

ource. 1985, 185:1, eff. July 27, 1985.

bme flesmsmnt mamaniet otata nh nefronfhim 1 TV YN I0/770.7 bt /287018
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o
CORPORATE|RESOLUTION

I, Dennis Shanahan {name), hereby certify trat | am a duly elected Officer of the Cooperative
Alliance for Seacoast Transportation {COAST). | hereby certify the following is a true copy of a

vote taken at a meeting of the duly authorizled Executive Committee of the Board of Directors,
duly called and held on April 24, 2023, at which a quorum of the Committee were present and

voting. |

VOTED: That Rad Nichols, ExecutiveDirector is duly authorized to enter into
contracts or agreements on behalf of COAST with the State of New Hampshire
and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any
documents which may in his/her jud‘gment be desirable or necessary to affect

the purpose of this vote. l

|
|
I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and

effect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains
valid for thirty {30} days from the date of this Corporate Resolution. | further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this Certificate as evidence that the
person listed above currently occupy the position indicated and that they have full authority to
bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of the listed
individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.

Date:_ /O /2'3/2—"/ Attest:

| Signature e

Dennis Shanahan, Chairman of the Board
Name & Title
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ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE " oo

"THIS CERTIFICATE I5 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE I1SSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pelicy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisians or bo endorsed.
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policiy. certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the cartificate holder in tieu of such endorsament(s).

RODUCER GONIACT  Kari Lee
‘ross Insurance-Manchester PHONE £q (603) 669-3218 [ FA% nop. (603)645-4331
100 Eim Street EMAIL <. karilBe@crossagency.com
| INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC ¥
Aanchester NH 03101 surer A : National Interstate Ins. Co. 32620
ISURED ) INSURER B ;
Cooperative Alliance for Seacoasl Transporiation INSURER C
42 Sumner Drive INSURER D :
INSURERE ;
Dover NH 03820 INSURER F :
{QVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  24-25 All Lines | REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTR.ACT OR QTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

" ADGLSUBH POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
o TYPE OF INSURANCE WyO POLICY NUMBER mﬁ:oomm mﬁmwwp LTS
| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE ¢ 5.000,000
| cLams.maoe [E OCCUR PREMISES {Ea octumencey | 8 190.000
[ . MED EXP {Any oneperson | s 5.000
A GLR024 180503 . 10/01/2024 | 10/01/2025 | pemsomar saovingury | § 5.000.000
GEMY AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 55,000,000
POLICY s D toc PRODUCTS . COMPIOPAGG | 5 5.000,000
OTHER: Ernployaa Benefit $ 1,000,000
COMDNNED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY {Ea acodent] $ 250,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Perperson} | §
QWNED SCHEDULED ;
A - s CAR024180504 10/01/2024 | 10/01/2025 | BODILY INJURY {Per accicen) | §
S| HiReD NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE T
L« AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | {Per accident)
s
UMBRELLA L1AD _5 OCCUR . EACH OCCURRENCE ¢ 5.000,000
a EXCESS LiAB CLAIMS-MADE ERXR024180504 10/01/2024 | 10/01/2025 | nonecate s 5.000,000
oEo | | RetenTion s 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION | E?:tr = I | Q’}‘!H-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN
ANY PROPRIE TOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE *| E.L EACH ACCIDENT H
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NiA
{Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | §
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY UMIT_| §
Ex Liabil Auto Liabilit Limit ! 4,750,000
cess Liability over Auto Liabili ’ "
& | Por Occurrence y DDX024180504 10/01/2024 | 10/01/2025 |Deduclible 250,000
ESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS [ LOCATIONS { VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addittonal Remarks Schedule, may be atiached if more space Is required}
‘ublic QOfficials Liability
'OL0S51406-05
1/01/2023 - 10/01/24
wdian Harbor Insurance Co
imil: $1,000,000
|
‘ERTIFICATE HOLDER C'ANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
NHDOT, Bureau of Rail and Transil ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Altn: Paula Bennelt
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

7 Hazen Drive, PO Box 483 i
Concord NH 03302-0483 i M\WNWD

; © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
.CORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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NIW KAMPSUINE MOTOS TRAKIPORT ASSocCeaTion

P.O. Box 3808
Concord, NH 03302-3006
(603) 224-7337

|
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

_ THIS CERTIFICATE i$ ISSUED AS AMATTER OF INFORMATION QNLY Ar{lD CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS

CERTIFIC'ATE'DUES'NOT?\'FF!RMATIVEEY'OR'NEGAﬂVEI:Y‘AMEND,‘EX-'I"END-GR-AEFER—T-HE-GQVERAGE-AEEORDED-B!’_THE.EQLICIES_

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE ACONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, A;ND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

This is to certify that: Cooperative Alllance for Seacoast Transportation Certificate #: 14
42 Sumner Drive
Dover, NH 03820

(s, at tho issue date of lhis certificate, Insured by tha Company, undor tha policy{ias) hsted below. The Insurance afforded by the llated policy(les) i

subjact fo alf thalr ierms, axclusions and condillons and Is aot allered by any requirement, lemm or condilan or other docurnan! with rospect to which this
carllticate may be [ssued.

COVERAGE AFFORDED UNDER WC LAW OF THE FOLLOWING STATE: NH

TYPE OF POLICY EXP DATE POLICY NUMBER LIMIT OF LIABILITY
Continuous”™
Extendad
= Polley Term
Jrkers' Compensation 01/01/2024-01/01/20256 PO0OB43INHMTA2024 Bodily Injury By Accldent $1,000,000
An
gﬁg{.’mﬁ;ﬁg’gﬁﬁg’e Bodlly injury by Olseasa Pollcy Limit $1,000,000
Yes: I__-I
If yes, describe under Bodily Injury by Disease Each Person $1,000,000
Desciiption of Operatlons below
Dascription of Operations:
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:

*If the cerllficata explrallon dats Is continuous or exianded tarm, you will be notifled if coverage Is larminated or reducad before the corlificate explration dale.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: (Not applicable unless a number of days Is Ienlared below.) Before the stated expiration dete, the company will not
cancel or reduce the insurence afforded under the above policies until at least 30 days. Notice of such cancellation has been mailed to:

NH MOTOR TRANSPORT ASSOCIATION SELF-INSURANCE GROUP TRUST

NHDOT, Bureau of Rall and Transit

7 Hazen Drive —_—l
PQ Box 483
Concord, NH 03302

Authorized Representative

:

Cancord, NH 603-224-7337 1112212023
Office Phone Number Date Issuad




Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2024 CERTIFICTATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant: Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST) The

Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: (check here) _X .
Or,

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:
Catepory | Certification

01  Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant

02  Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan

w

03  Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04  Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

06  Transit Asset Management Plan

07  Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08  Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pitot Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs




Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs

13 State of Good Repair Grants

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16  Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Respori:;iire Service

18  Interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES SIGNATURE PAGE

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT

Name of the Applicant: Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation ({COAST)

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalf of the Applicant, 1 declare thatiit has duly authorized me to make these
Centifications and Assurances and bind its compliance. Thus, it agrees to comply with all federal laws, regulations,
and requirements, follow applicable federal guidance, and comply; with the Certifications and Assurances as
indicated on the foregoing page apptlicable to each application its Authorized Representative makes to the Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) in the federal fiscal year, irrespective of whether the individual that acted on his or

her Applicant’s behalf continues to represent it.

The Certifications and Assurances the Applicant selects apply to c‘ach Award for which it now secks, or may
later seek federal assistance to be awarded by FTA during the federal fiscal year.

The Applicant affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances it has selected in the
statements submitted with this document and any other submission made to FTA, and acknowledges that the -
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 31 U.5.C. § 3801 et sleq., and implementing U.S. DOT regulations,
“Program Fraud Civil Remedies,” 49 CFR part 31, apply to any certification, 8ssurance or submission made to

FTA. The criminal provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 apply to any ce‘rtiﬁcatiori, assurance, or submission made in

connection with a federal public transportation program authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other statute
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Dapartmant af Teamsportation

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/18/2022

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Adniinistration (FTA)

Name of Récipient Agency: New Hampshi}e Department of Tra;:&partation (NHDOT)

Name of Subrecipient/Contracting Agency: Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation
Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Trai:sportatior;, shall comply with all applicable federal
laws, regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration

(FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certlﬁcatloﬁs and Assurances. This award includes
mformatnon requxred by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows

FTA award project description: (4s required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA)

Amount: $54,900
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) qumber: 20.513
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5310 RCC PI?OGRAM APPLICATIONS
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NH-2021-016-01
Federal Award Date: 9/1/21

Contact information for sub-awarding official:
Name: Frederick Butler Title: Public Transportation Administrator
Email: Frederick.J.Butler@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603;-271-2565

Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT’s cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient/Contractor Information:
Subrecipient/Contractor Name: Cooperative Alliaqce Sor Seacoast Transportation

Subrecipient/Contractor SAM.GOV 1.D.: RTMFG;SLQGSAI
Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Rad Nichols
Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Executive Director

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes

Subrecipient/Contractor Federal indirect cost rate: N/A

(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negolta!cd between the subrecipient/contractor and the Federal

[
Government or, if no such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414 Indirect. (F&A) costs,

paragraph (f}).

Subaward Period of performance:
Start Date: 6/14/23  End Date: 6/30/25

\




-
Adepartment wf TYmusportation

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/18/2022

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action (contract/amendment):
For FFY: 2024 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $54,900

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipient (originat contract & amendments):
For FFY: 2024 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $952,900

Pass-through requirements:

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Cogperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation agrees to meet
all requirement imposed by the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the
Federal award is used in accordance with Federal "3tatutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of the Federal award.

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation agrees to any
additional requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in
order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to mef::t its own responsibility to the Federal
awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required financial and performance
reports.

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Cogperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation agrees to
permit the pass-through entity (NHDOT) and audi;tors to have access to the subrecipients records
and financial statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this
part; and appropriate terms and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date:

Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Rad Nichols

-~
Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: E@ftor

Signature of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official:
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,um ;(,.,,,. ,_ 4, e THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
; i DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
G&C #69
,,,_"‘,ITWMM Date 6/14/23 @Ol
William Cass, P.E. David Rodrigue. P.E.
g o Assistant Commissioner
Commissinner .
Andre Briere, Colonel, USAF (RET)
Deputy Commissioner
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council : April 26, 2023
Swate House
Concord, NH 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter

into an agreement with the Cooperative Alliance for

Seacoast Transportation, (Vendor 155553), Dover, New FHampshire, for an amount not to exceed
$898,000 for coordinated transportation services for seniors and individuals with disabilities for the period

July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2025, effective upon Governor and council approval.

100% Federal Funds,

Il
Funding for this agreement is contingent upon the av:ailabilily of funds in Fiscal Year 2024 and Fiscal
Year 2025, with the ability (o adjust encumbrances through the Budget Office between State Fiscal Years

|

if needed and justified.

LY 2024 FY 2025
04-96-96-964010-2916
Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Frofits-Federal $449.000 $449,000
EXPLANATION

I
Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST) has been awarded Federal Transit

Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Enhanced Mobi
(Section 5310} program funds in the amount of $898,

ity of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilitics
000 1o provide expanded transportation services in

the Region 10 Southeast Region Coordinating Council (RCC) service area. FTA Section 5310 funds

support eligible activities including operating, capiwl,
programs.

mobility management, and volunteer driver

The Depariment's proposed SFY 2024 and 2025 operating budget includes fuads from the FTA Section
5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals mth Disabilities (Section 5310) that provides funds

for capital, contracted services, and mobility manage
New Hampshire.

ment for seniors and individuals with disabilities in

COAST will act as the lead agency to facililate the pmvmon of accessible demand response transporiation
services for seniors and individuals with disabilitics within the region and will support mobility

management and stratcgic planning activities in cooperation with the Region 10 Southcast Region

Coordinating Council. -

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING « 7 HAZEN DRIVE « P.O
TELEPHONE: (803} 271-3734 » FAX: (603) 271-3914 »

| BOX 483 « CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
[TBO: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 »WWWW.RHDOT COM



The Section 5310 RCC funds were allocated by region according to a formula based on regional
populations of residents over 65 and those between llhc ages of 5-64 with disabilities. Each individual
RCC was responsible for conducting its own project solicitation, evaluation, and prioritization and then
submitting one regional application for eligible. Secuon 5310 RCC projects through an approved lead
agency. Southeast Region Coordinating Council desngnatcd COAST as the lead agency for Region 10 and
tasked COAST with applying for Section 5310 RCC funds on behalf of Region 10. As required by FTA,
all projects are identified in a locally developed coordinated public transit~human scrvices transportation
plan.

COAST, in conjunction with its regional pértncrs as applicable, will provide the remaining required non-
federal matching funds. In the event that Federal Funds become unavailable,-generai funds will not be
requested to support this program.

The Agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the

- Department will verify the necessary funds are available pending enactment of the Fiscal Year 2024 and
2025 budget. Copies of the fully executed Agrecmer'n are on file at the Secretary of State’s Office and
the Department of Administrative Services, and sub'scqucnl to Governor and Council approval will be
on file at the Department of Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.
Sincerely, ,
William Cass, P.E.

Commissioner

Attachments




Subject: SFY 2024 < 2025 FTA Seétioh 5310’

] FORM NUMBER G- (versign 112011y
QCC Regioh 10

GRANT'AGREEMENT

Thc Smle of; Ncw Hampsliire. and the: Grantcc hcrcby
Mulually agrcc a5 follows: '

GENERAL PROVISIONS-

A [dcntﬂ' cation-and: Dcﬁniﬁons o

Ly 1 Statc Agcncy Namc
NH Départietitof T;anSpo_rt_étiéﬁ ,

1 2 Slatc Agcncy Addrcss
-PO:Box483 8 HazenDr, Concord. NH 03302-0483.

'l

1.3. Grante¢ Name

1| '1.4. Grantec Address

Cooperative AIIIanca for Seacoast Transportation DBA: CoASTH2 'Sﬂﬁﬁéf?aﬁ."é?7b¢vﬁf' NH 03820:5451,

135 Grau(gc.-fhonc # 1.6: Acccunt Nu.mbcr

500575

.603-743:5777 i 04-96—96-96401 0—2916f72 :’1’09@93'2‘@257 .

L.8.:Graif Lifitatiofi

1'5698.600

| 1.7: complétion Date

"1.9. GrantOfficer for State Agcncy
Frederick: Butler Pubhc Transportation Admmlstrako
Bureau of Rau! & Transrt

1,10, Siste Agency Telephone Number
f | 6032742568

If Grantee'is.a.municipality or \n}Ingc dlstnct IBY: 51gning thls form we certify lhnt we have: complled with’

iany public mectingﬂqul:_emcn( for"qcﬁj_s"ﬂqce Of?lhlS grant mcludmg if- appllcablc RSA31: 95- Nt
< A "1.12. Namé:& Title:of Grantcc Signunl

L Namc & Tulc of Gedntee: S:gncr 2 N/A

{ ‘Namé &Titi¢’of Grantec Signor 3'N/A

L Slaik:rﬂgéncj Signature(s)

/hrwo <o

| 1.14. Name¢ & Title of-State. Agency; Signar(s).
AL C—I\c l{ [ SN imdrer
|, Director.of Aeronsutics, Rail & Transit

IYS Apptoval by Attornéy General(Form,! Subslucc and Exccuho;l)(lf G& C-approval requirédy-

By [“ 1”0 % Assistant Attomcy “General, On: 5“113/2.023
: o l

ernogand Counml (lf apphcab]c)

SECREJARY OF STATE 0N 14 5053

2. SCOPE-OF WORK:- In’ cxchange-for granl'funds provided by thc State:of New Hampshire,:acting.
through ihc Agency’ identificd in block:1.1 (hcremaftcr referred:to-as. lhe State™), the Grantee-identified in

block 1.3. (heremn&er referred 16 as “the Grantée™),

lshall perform that, work identified and more’ pamcularly

described-in the scope of work atiached her¢to as EXHIBIT B (tlic. scope of work being hcrcmaﬁcr rcfcm:d 10

as “the Project” Y
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42

- 5t

s
s,

R V| Except a3 oiherwise specifically provided for berein, (e

Grantee shall. perferm the Frojeer in, ead with sespect 16, the Staie of New
Hlmpﬁl .
This Ap’ccmml. and all -obligmions of e padics hucmd:r shatl become
effective on Whe iaic oo 1he date of approval of this Agfecment by the Govcmor
and Council of the Sizic of New H:mpahm‘.' ifrequired (block: 1. 16), or upoo
sipnature by the State Agency as shown in black 1.14 {“the Effoaive Date™).

‘Except 26 orherwisc specifically provided heceis, the Project, Includ'mpu teporis

requiced by this Agreement, shall br compliicd in TTS-entircty prios 1o the gaic n
block 1.2 (herainafiersefemed 1o us “the Completion Duic™). -
IRANT A NT: LIMIT ON O MOUNT; VO

S:

FAYNENT, _ |
The Gran: Amouid is ideified and morc paniculiily deseribed in EXHIBIT C.°

liached hereta.
‘The manncr of, and schedule ofpnynx-.nuh-l.l be as sct forth in EXHIBIT C.

“In agcordance with the provisions sei forth in EXHIBIT C, and in cuns«!umon

. _of the sstisfaciony-perfomapce of the Projeci. ay determined by the State, end :.s

54,

.38,

X
i . Dore, waless oiticrwise required-by.the grant-ferms érthe- Agency. e Grantee

LAz,

timited by subparagraph 5.5 of Lheee generst provisions. the Sauc shall pay lbe
Grentee the Graot Amaount. The Smc shall withhold from the-amoury o:hcrws:
peyable to the Groniee under this subparagraph 5.3 these sums requifed, o
permitted, to be withheld pursitant 10 NI RSA 80:7 through 7.

“The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be ike only, und the complac

payment 10 the Granter for all expenses, of whatcver odiure, incsred by the
Graniee in- the performance hereof, and chall be the: oaly. snd the :ompselc
compensation 10 the Graneee for the Project. The Stato' shall bave no labilities to
the Grantee otber (ban the.Gant Amaunt,

Nuwhﬂudm; saything' in tris Agreonentio-the contrary, and nmmuuund:nn

~ uncapecicd cirtumatances, in a0 even shall the intl of ali payments |umodud
. of sctuslly enade, hercunder. exceed ihe Grant limitation set forth in block 1.5 of
. these-goueal pm\‘umn;

A} Al At S, In

B | conncetion with the performance of the Project; the Granice shall comply with nfl

statuics, Lawa tt;ut:!ms. and orders of federsl, state, county, or fm.mmp;l
euthixilics which shall imiposc any cbligaions or diy upoo ihe Gradee, inctuding
nuunqumlmohnymmmumypcmuandwn&s-b

RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.
Behween the Effective Dateand e duc w:v:n (T} -years sfler he Compktmn

shall keep deralled accounts of all_expenses lacumved "in, comnection with lhc
ij:cl. inchuding. tan nov limited to, costs of idministration; lmq:omaba
insurance, ielepbone calls and cloritel materials and services.  Such BeCouAl
shall be supparted by receiprs, invoices, bills and other shintiar documenis,

Between the Effective Dadc pad the daic iévén {7) peirs aflér the Comghktion

" Date, unless oihorwise roquired by the grant (enrs'or the Agency parsusnt |k

il " subprragroph 7.1, &t any eme duniag the Graatee s normal busincss boars, mdls

© oficn as the Staic shal) domand, the Grantee shallwuske ovailable 1s the Stare nll
" recoeds prrajning o maticn covered by dhis Agreement,

The Gronice shall
permit the Staze o sedik, exsmine, and reproduce'mich recards, sad 10 make udlu

.- of oMl contracts, invoites, materiats, payrolls, reeotds-of persbans!, daa {as dul

Page 203

‘Ol‘m-cf. and hisher decision on my disputz, shall be fiml.

- devetoped oc obaincd during the porformuince of. oc soquirsd or developed
* reasta of, this Agieesnent, including. butoa! limited w, all sudics, teports, e,
) 'l’mnol:u.. surveys. maps. <harts. sound reourdings, video recordings, pictoial
 reproductipns, dibwings, anslyses, graphic reprosculalions,

serm is hereinafter defined), § md othcr informati rclu!ngw sli,matters cmed
by this Agredincit? Age m

naturat or [ictional, .mnma with, cootraticd By, o usder common owocrship
with, the cndity identificd as the Grantee. in block 1.3 of these provizions

o |

The Granior ghatl, w its own expense, provide sl penunned prcorsary to pﬁl‘m
the Project. The. Granice wasruns-that sl pérsoanet engaged in the Project ;h-ll
be qualificd to perfonn such Project. ang shall be property h:mscd and sutharized
10 perfonn such Project indes all :pplanble faws,

The Grantes thall aot bire..and n shall aol germit any subcomirscior, subgrantee,
or other peraon, firm ot corporation with whom-i is engaged in » combincd cffon

1o perform.the Froject. 1o hire any person wha has seontacs! relationship with:
‘the Staze. ‘or who is'a State afficer or crq:loﬁq :lccud’or sppoinied.
The Grant OMicer shall be the rrprcstnnnvc of the Séate hereucder. tnthe cveny

of aby dispute hercundtr, (e incrpistation of this Agreemient by the Gram

DAT, OF | CCPSS:
Ay usedin thig Agreement, lbc word “diia™ shallmeanaliinformation and things
by

hedindlMes ali pcrwm..

9.2

94

9.5

i,
[ AR

I
L2
TR}

A

.

1.2

1.l

11.13
$.24

1L
1.1

~

cOmpiicr Programs, computsr pantouts, nolcs, leiters, memoranda, papct, dad
document, el whether finisbed or enfinished,

Berween the Fifective Daie and e Completion Dae the Grantce thall gram w
ahe Scate, o sny person deigneizd by it, wnrestricted eccess 10 ofl dua I+
exasnination, duplication, publication, tramintion, safe, disposal, or foe any otk
pumose whatsoever,,

No daia ghall be subjoct to copyright in the United. Stau:: or any other couniry by
envonc othier than the State,

On asdafer the Efeetive Datc all daw, 2nd any property which s been received
from the Suie or purcbascd with funds provided, for 1hat purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the Stase, wnd shull be retumed to the Siate
wpon demaad oc upan iermination of this Agreomend for any-soasna, whichever
shall firge occur,

The Siste, 2nd anyone it shat designaie, shall'have uniestricied authorly lo
publish, disclose, distribute and oiherwise use, in whoke or in pant, sil data.
CONDITIDNA) NATURE O AGREEMENT, Notwithnanding snything in
this Agreemeni to.the contrary, all oblipaioas of the State hereundes. mcloding,
~without fimitution, Uk continuznce of payments horouader. are contingent upon
the availabilhy of continued apprupeisiion of funds, skt in no cvent shall the Steie
be fiable Tor any payments hereonder in excess of such available of appropriated
funds. tn the-cvent of 8, reduclion or termination of thase (unds, the State shall

_ hoveiho ngmmwixhhnldp:mﬂuunul such fund: bocome avaitsbla. if ever, and | .
shall bave e fght 1o lerminate tiis -Agreement immediatly upen giving the

Giantes _nogu of guch 1emunaunn.

VEN EMEDIES.
Any boc or moee of the I'ulbwmg BLE or Gimissigns af the Grant=e shall constituic
0 cvent of defaull bercwnder (lieecinalics referrad to a3 “Eveatd of Delul™):
Faituse perfonm the Projoit satisfadtonily or vn xlu:dulc o
Failure to submit eay repost required hereundas or
Foilure to maintain, or pormit accest to, the reconds required hereunder; o
Fuilure % peifortn any of 1he olhar covenants epd conditions of (his Agreement
Upan the occurnreace of eny Even of Belault, the Stits may take uny on, of mor,
o# 31k, of the Tellowing actions:
Give the Grinice s writicn satice specifying the Event of Uefaul and requiring it
{0 be remedicd within, In7the :bsm:e of u greaker.or Tesserspecification of time,
thirty (30) days from.the date ofthr.nolu:: and if the Event of Delault is not

- \imely remedicd, serminate this Agreement, cITcuut g (2) doys afiergiving the

Grantee nouceof:ummuoa and

Give the Grantet 8 writlcasadtice specifying.the Event of Defaub and suspm«

ol payinnts w be made ander this Agredinica sl odering it the portion o
Grant Amount which woukd othorwise acerue i the Grantoe dufing e periol
from he date of such notite until such time a3 the Swie deiomines that the
Grantee has cired the Event of Defanll shall acver be paid 10 the Granice: and
Set o{T against any other obfigation the Starte may ows to the Grinee any damages
the Srate gulfers by reason of uny Eventof Defsnls-and

Treai the agreement s brearhed and pursue any of its remedics at Baw or in equity,
or bath.

JERMINATION.

in the event of eny exely terminugion of Lhis Agreainunt for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shilt deliver o Ihe Grant Officer, not
later than fiftzen (13) days afler the daic-of temination, 8 report (hereindfier
referred 10 a5 the ~Termicetion Repori™) describing in detail sl Project Work
pecformed, and the Grant Amouat casncd. 1o 3nd including the daie of termnination.
th the cvery of Témination -under parmgraphs 10 or 124 of thesé pencml
provisions, the approval of such s Termination Report by ibe Sute shall enmibric
the Graniet 10 reccive that portion of the Grant amount comtd 1o o inchuding
the date of iemination.

In the evem of Tennination undo paragraphs 10 or 124 of these peners!
provisions; e spproval of such a Tominativn Roport by the Staie shall in no
even relieve the Graniee froim sny end all lisbifity for damages suswmined or
incured by the Stote ps » resull of the. Granice's breuch of its obliguions
Ierrunder,

Notwilhstanding snything iw this Agreement vo the conrrmry, cither the Staic o,
except where notlce delault has been given 1o the Granwce bereunder, the Graniee,
may terminare this Apyeemeny without eause upon thiny (301 days writien notice.
CONFLICT QF INTEREST. No.oflicer, nember. of einployes of the Grantes.
snd no r:pr:smuu\e officer ar craptdyce of the State of New Hompshire br of
the goveming body of the tocality or. localities in which the Project ir 1o be
performed, who exercises sny functions ar cesponsibilities in the reviewor .

Contractor [nlials
Dawe



" _approval of ific undenaking or carying out of such Prgject, shall panicipate in

apy dccision relating 10 this Agreement which affects bis or er personal interest

" or the interast of any cumontion, partnership, oo sssuciation in which he ur ¢he

- is dircclly or indirccily imieresicd, por shat] e ur she bave any porsonsl or

.-

5 G YEP S RELATION
- "Apreement the Grantee, its employocs: and sny subconirctor o Fubgsantec of

pocuniary interess, diree) or indinges, in this Agreemen o the procecds-thereof.
in the performance of this

- the Gismee arc in all respecty independent contruciors, and are arither agenid

vor employces of the Stae.  Neifher the Grontee nor ofy of ity officers,

. .conplayees, npents, membes, subcoatracion @ sibgrantoes, shall have suthority

15. -

to bing the Stste nor are they catitled 1o any of the beneliu, worknten's

* tompensation or cnchuments provided by the Stotc o it employees.

d AND §U . The Grantee-shall.oot assipn,-or

-otherwise (aamfer any interest in this Agreement withou! the prias writien
" ronsert of the State. None of the Project Wock shall be subcontracled or
*_subgranied by the Gramee othoy than a5 s¢1 fonh ia Exhibit B without the prior
* wiilten coasent of the Stie,

' Lt The Gruatce shall defomd), indennify and bhold

"bamicss the Siate, i offigers and employees, from ond ogainst any wod all

" . kossea sullered by the State, i officas snd cmployces; and sny and al! claiins,

" lishilitics os penaltics asséned againg the Sinc, s officers and cployees, by

or on behall of any-psrson. on account of. besed on, resulting Fram, arisiag out

. af (67 which may by claimed to artsc cut 6f} the 8613 of ueissions of the Grantce

.
i

17.L1

(AR

- or pubonirzctor, or fubgraatee or oihéy agent of the Geantee. Nerwithsanding
. the forcpoing. pothing horein cootyined shall be decmed (o constitute & waiver
.of the savercign immuniry of the-Suate, which immmnity-is hercby reserved 1o

the State. This coveansns shall survive the termination of this sgrecment.
The Grantee shall, 41 its own expense, obiiin and muainiain in féree, or sgholl
require any subConLecios, subgranter or sisighee parforming Project work 1o
ghain ead maintain in Gree, both [ the benclin of die Stale, the liowing
inTurance:

Statutiry -workers' compeniation oad cmployees liskility insorance for ull

employees cugaged-it the perfannance of the Pmjeer, snd

Genern! liability inntrance apainsi all chaitas ofbodily iajurcies, death or propenty

dpimapr. in aenounts o1 W than $1,006,000 per accunrence and §2,000.000
© appregae (o bodiky inury vr Seilh sny oug lnciden, sin] $300.000.for property
_ darmege in any ooc incidenl! add i o
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17,2, The policies daicribed (usybparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the standarng

0.

H{8

11

1.

k23

fwm craployed ia the Siate of New Hampsbice, issued by undenwtitcrs accepabl
1o the State, end autionzed 1o do butiness ip the Stae of Now Hompshire, Greniee
shalt fumish o Ibe Stale, certificates of insurence for alk renewal(s) of ingurance
required under s Agreement ng Later than ten (£0) days pries (0 the expirmation
dote of ench lnmursnce policy.

WAIVER OF QRFACH. No fritaa by the Stme to enforce any provisions
hereof afier any Cvent of Delaiili shell be deemed a waiver ofiLs righty with regard
to that Gviiil, of Eny subiéquchiEvehl, Mo capréss waiver of any Everit of Defauh
shelt be deemed a wabver of dny provisions hercol, ‘No such [ilure of waiver
shafi be doeowd a wwiver of dlic right of ibe Swi¢ 10 enforce each and sll of the
provislons bereal upon any further or other defoult on the pant of the Graniee.
[YQYICE. Any sitiée by 3 pany hereto fo i uiber panty shall be deenied o have
been duly delivered of given al the time of mailing by centificd mail. postage
prepeid, in a United States Pon Office addressed 10 the parties ol the addnesses
firsi sbeve given,

AMENDMENT. Tiis Agreemnent may be amended, waired of Jischarged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the panties hercto und only after approvel of
such amendtmens, waiver ov:disdw‘;n by the Guvernoi and Council of the Staic
af Now Hampshire, if required o7 by the signing Stale Agency.

NSTHUCTION OF ACR ‘[t TERMIS. This Agreement lioll
be coastrued in.sccordance. with the baw of the St of New Hampshire. and is
Vinding upron end intres 10 the deéaclit uf the panios and their reapective successors
and assifnees. The coptions and coneeqls of the “yobjsci™ blank orc used anly »s
3 masier of eonvenicnce, and are.not (o be considered 3 paot of this Agreemenl o
10 be wsed in determining the iniend of the partics hereta.

S. The partics herwio do rat intakd 1o bonelit uny thicd partics
and this Agreemient shall dot be eonstnicd 1o confer.any such benefil,
ENTIREAGREEMENT. This Agrecment, which nuy be ciecuied in 8.0umbcer
of couniecparts, esch of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreanem ot} undcrusnding boween (he pacies, ead supencdes olt prior
aptesments and undersiandings iebying hereio,

ECE Vi . “The additivnsl o medilying provisions ¢t (poh in
Fxhibit A hevnn ar.ineparared ax part pf ihis agmanenl, B

Contractor Intials
Doe § ig?
il




.'-_COOEERATIVEALL_IANCE FOR SEACQAST TRANPQRTATION, DBA:

COAST
EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT
g IEXHIBIT A Sl;ccial Provisions
. EXHIBITB . Scopelof Services
B EXHIBITC  Budgel

. Cénificaté of Good Standi

. Cenificate of Corporite Vote

: -,___Cerliﬁcntc of Insurance

ng - Exemption

"7 FTA Cenifications and Assurances

. FTA Master Agreement

" 2 CFR Part 200
h FTA Section

- -Sacial Service Documents
501 ()
» .Financial Report
Board of Directors

5310

to [nclude:

Kcy Persoonel.and Salaries

Resuwmnes




COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION DBA: COAST
S ELHIBI'I‘ A
-'SPECIAL PROVISIONS .

g .'~_A 4. Amend G-1 Section 2. “SCOPE OF WORK?" by xdding the following:

Revised 04/18/2023 .-

2.1, - The Grantce may change services as described in Exhibit B, Scope of Services (hereinafier the .~ 7
“-“Services™) only with the prior wriien agréement of the Siate and in accordance wuh apphcablc o

I’ ederal Transit Administration {FTA) requirements.

; '__'A 2. Amcnd G-1 Scction 3, “AREA COVEREDI” by adding the following:

3L Semces may cxtend to adjacent Siates \mh prior writien ‘approval from the Siate. The Stale k]

- -reserves the right'1o require.formel cost allocation measures.

3_ - Amend Ge1 Section 5. “GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: 57

PAYM ENT" by adding the following:’

5.6 " As applicable based on Féderal participation ralios, the amaunt poid by the State to the Grunlcc BN
7. .shall not éxceed 50% of dllowable opcranng costs less fare. revenues plus 80% of aliowable -
-~ administrative and capital costs. Opcmttng, administrative and capital costs are idéntified in . .
" Exhibit C. The Grantee shal) provide and documem the availabiity of local funds suffi cient Io e

: ".'_‘_mccr the project cost in excess of the Grant Price Limitation.

g 5.7. - -In the event thal meveaues excccd the lo!al aflowsble costs, $oid revenues in cexcess ofstotal <~
- -allowable costs shall be placed in an ln!crcsl -bearing account within 30 days of the Complclmn NN~

s '_"Dmc and made availebie-to the Siafc upan ‘demand.

e 5.8, . The Grantce shall submit n request for'payment to the Staie on o form specified by the State on 3

et momhly ot quartcrly basis, togethes avith aII information to siippnrt the request. Such requests for ... e
.- payment shall be properly completed and sugncd Requests for payments must be for alloivable - " = .
. -costs oniy 8§, dcfmcd in2 CFR Pnrt 200. No requests for advance payment will be accepied by i

1 -.j"'.lhc State. -

o ‘.5.9.,._ " Upon receipt of the request for [payment, the Staie shall review ihe request to determine the =~
' altowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demarid producuon of (and
the Grantee shall produce) and-iiispect any'documenls and records described in Sedtion 7.

- 5.10.  Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records required

by the State, the Siste shall determine the al!O\\ﬂblilI\' of costs and the amount duc snd owing to. .

the Grantee and shall pay sald amount, subject to other provisions of this Agreement.

- 5.11. - Final Pa)imcnt. The C_.ramce's provision of all reports required under-this Ag;ccmcnt is a
" “condition precedent to final payment. : ' :

A4, Amend G-1 Scction 6. “COMPLIANCE BY CRANTEE WITH LAWS AND

¥ REGULATIONS" by adding the {oliowing:
. 6.1, “The Grantee shall post in conspicuous lpl:.uccs available 10 employees and applicants for
7 . employment, notices setting forth the provisions of the Federal Title VI non-dlscnmmauon
‘requirements. ;

6.2, The Grantee shall state, in all salicitations or advenisemenis for employees, that all qualified
B -applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard 10 race, color, age, creed,

§




6.3

m;-_,;.s. |

125

':.'_nz_,;_s_,

' - sex. o national origin. -

‘I‘hc provisions -of 2-CFR 200 shall apply to tocal administration of this agreement and any :

subgramcc under this ngﬂ;emcnl

Amend G-1 Section 12. “TERMINATION" by nddlng the followmg

The Termination Report must be approved by the Stale-and the Fedcral Transit Admlmstrauon e o
g -,:(FTA) priog to final payment. -

- Complelion of Sérvices; Payment of Price, Excepting those obligations-of the Grantee which; by .

.- . the terms of this Agreement, do not c\plrc on the Completion Date, upon the-completion of the '
"+ Services and upon payment of the Grant Price, this Agreement, and all obligétions of the pnmcs. e

Ly 'f_hcmin‘d'cf. shalt cease and neither party shall have further tecourse under thie Agreement

Lo

- Amend G-1 Section 9. “DATA RETENTION OF DATA; ACCESS" by addiag fhe
fnllowmg ’

S 9 6 _- The-following | rcslncuons appl)' to all subject data first. produced in, the pérformance of ﬂns 3

LA grccmcm

e 9_._6,_} N _'__[xccpl for its own internal use, the Gmn\ec may 6or publish or feproduce such.data in

“-.whole or in pan, or in any manner or form, nor may the Grantée-authorize others (o do s0, -_ o

- avithotthe written consei of the Stalc until such time as the FTA may have cither -
... feleased af approved the release of such data to the pubhu_

et - 96,2 AS authorized by 2 CFR 200, the FTA réserves a roynlty free non-exclusive and

. o ? o

;i -..',-trrcvocnble license to reproduce, pubhsb and othenwvise use, and to.authorize others 1o~ :

. use, for Federal purpases,-any - wort developcd under a grasit, cooperative agreement,

. sub-grant,.or thitd party prant, :rreSpccuve of whether a copyright-has been obtained; and W
-.any rights of: cOpynghL to which a rec:pu:nl sub-~recipient, of third pasty contractor -~ =~ "1

-.. purchases ownership. with Federal assiztance.

"I is the FTA's.inlgnt to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therclore, the
" Grantee understands and agrees that in udldmon 10 the rights set forth in 8.6 (b).above, the FTA

.-mny make available to any recipient. subgrantee, grantee.of subgrantee.its license in the copyright

- to the date defived under this Agrtcmém or a copy of the data first produced under this

88,

"Agreement,

" The Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmiess the State and United States, their officers,
- _agents, end employees acling within thc scope of their official duties against any liability,

including cosls and expenses, resulling from any willful.of intentionsl violation of the propriciary

. sights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproductin,

99, -

- 9.10.

,.dclwcry use, or disposition of any daia furnished under this Agreement.

'Nothmg contained in this clause shall imply a ficense to the United Staics under any patent orbe
construed as 2ffecting the scope of any license or oiher fight atherwise granted to the United ™

States under any -paiént,

Sections 9.4, 3.5, and 9.6 above are not applicable to material fumished 10 the Grantee by the.

- Stdic or United Siates and mcorpormcd m' the work furnished under the agreement; provided that
" such mcorpormed matenaj i5 |denuﬁed bv thc Gmntce at \he nmc of delivery ol' such work '

Revised 04/18/2023 "+



g Revised 04/18/2023

' ".9.! §.. Inthe event that the project is nol compl:.tcd for any reason, al) data develgped under the project
shall become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the SLntc orthe FTA

o may direct.
C AT Amend G-1 Scctien 15, “ASSIGNMENTSIIANDJ’SUBGRANTEES" by adding the following:

15.] - The Grantee shall cause the-provisions of lhu grant 1o be insenied in all subgrants for any-work
"+ . covered by this Agrecment sp that the prowsmns will be binding on each subgrantee; provided,
+_however, thal the foregoing provisions shall not apply to subgrantees for.standard cammercial
" supplics or raw materials. The Graritee shn!l 1ake such action wilh respect to any subgrant as the
. State may direct as » means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:
-.‘The Grantee shall ensure that any suhgnmlcc has obtained atf licenses, permits or approvals
required for the performance of grant Services.

e A8,  Amecad G-1 by adding *DEFINITIONS™ as Section 25:
"'25..  DEFINITIONS

[ .. ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services which -
", - satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 240.

~ FTA: U.S. Department of Transponation, Federal Transit Administration

.. . PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, chans, figures and/or maps submitted to the State .I
. detailing the scope of the public tmnsportahnn program- -of the Grant as modified and spproved

by the State.

“REVENUE: Fares fiom individuals or ofhér directincome for the pubhc transportation ervices
- ... being provided by the Graritee, Revenues also include funds from subgrants, tontracts, purchase
- ofservice agreemenis, and eXCcess ma!chmg funds,that dircctly benefit the transportation service.,

... SECTION 5310; -Section $310 6f the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST), as
amended.

STATE: The State of New | [ampshire, scting through the Dépanment of Transportation, Dureau
of Rail and Transit.

A9. Amend C-1 by adding “ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS™ as Seclion 26:

26. ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING REQU!REM’ENTS

26.1. Ledgers. Grantce andfor subgranice shall esiablish ‘and mdintain ledgcr sheets for each budget
category. Entries shall be. made and shall refiect the financial activities 6f the Grantee. The ledger
shedt must be in a form approved by the State E The ledger wil! indicare the funds remaining in each
line item of the Grant Budget dt the beginning of each month. Entries shall be made on & running
Basi$ and carried over to the follgwing month; thatis. figurés wil] be brought forwvard cumulatively.
Grantee shall also prepare and submit to' the State o profit and loss statement quarterly if such
information is not provided with invoices.

262. Accounts Receivable. The. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall déposit all revenuc in an interest-
bearing account with a banking institution in this Siatc. Grantee shall prepare 2nd maintain receipt
vouchers for all revenue, Immediately upon| receipt, Grantee and/or subgrantee shall credic al)
revenue Lo the appropriate recéipt account. Grantee and/or subgrantice shall esteblish and maintain
an Accounts Receivable Ledger. The receipt number appedring in the Ledger shall correspond to
the receipt vouchier number. A receipt voucher must be completed on a form approved by the State

!y\cxj/i y

it




(263

Revised 04/18/2023

aud shall idéntify eath component of every dcposu All appropriate sugporting-documents {or each
deposit should be attached to the receipt vouchCr

Payables. Grantee and/or subgrantec shall prepare vouchers to docunient all expenditures of funds.

.- The voucher shall inciude the following :nfonnauon and shall be prcparcd on a form approved by
" the State: The Division -and account numbers from which the funds will be’drawn, the date of
.. - expenditure, a-voucher number running in sequence; and any appropnan: comments supponting the
.- expenditure of*funds (e.g., invoices end payroll vouchers). AM invoices récéived by rhe Grantee

. shalf be checked foraccuracy and allowability. Edch invoice must be approved for payment by the

264,

" abbreviations are (6 be used.

Grant 'Manager or designee. immedialely ulpon payment, Grantee and/or subgrantee shatl make
entries to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment. (Each subgrantee shall identify a
Grant Manager).

Voucher and Receipt Register. Grantee [and/or subgrantée shali establish and maintain fwo
registers that will contain a running, iotal of ait payablé receipt vouchers. The régisters will provide
a summary of voucher or receipt numbers, amount, and purpose of action. No sclf-designaicd

Check Register. Grantee and/or subgramcc shail maintain o cheek register. This register is also
considered a book of original entry and is posted to the ledger immediately.

“Time-Sheet, Taxes; and Benefits. Grantee;and/or subgrantee shall requice each of its employees

"o 1) submit weekly time repons designating work performed nnd_limc spent on such work, or 2)
".- be included in an indirect cost allocation plan approved by the cognizant Federal agency. The
© Graitee shall summidrize timé reports by task and apply employee's cates of pay 10 the hours: ~
" workéd, The' Grant Manager shalf review complctcd and signed time reparts and cause-them to be

posted. io the approprigte calegory in the gcncral fedger. The Grantee shall maintain records of

"""-.cmployce payroll nd benefits and’ sha!l post His inldrmiation 0 the 2pp nppropnatc*culcgmy in the

267,

-_gencral ledger. The Grant Manager shalt ensure that al payments are on'a fimely basis.

Reiinbursements. On.a monthly basis, the; Grantee shall submit a description of Gran! activities,

" in 2 format as required by the State. Shnuld the Granige show a profil for any fionth, the Grantee

" shatl apply the amount of prol' { against subscqucm reimbursement requests. The Grantee shill
"-.agree to provide information in addition to the monthty narsative at such times and in such manner

268

"&s the Sthle may require, and to prepare anylreporls which may be requested by the Staie including
‘but-not kimited io a final or termination repont if operations cease,

Maintenance of Records. The Grantee shafl keep and maintain the records, documents, and

‘accounts desciibed hercin for a period of lhm: years afler the FTA grant is ¢losed. The Granice

. shall maintain, and make available 1o the Stalc and the FTA, records.relating to complaints and

269.

_comments received from the public. In the event the State disputes the ‘Grantee's operations or
. records as subniitied for payment or olhcrwnsc final resolution shall rest with'ihe State.

“Audits and Iaspections. Between the Efective Date and the Campletion Date, and for a period of
" thiree (3) years sfter the FTA grant is closcd or the date of resolution of all matters relating 10 this

" Agreement, whichever is later, at any time d'un ng the Grantee's normal business hours, and as often
" as the State or the FTA may demand, the Gramec shall make availablg to the Siate and the FTA or

“their designees. all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Graniee shatl

pemit the State and the FTA 16 audis, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make dudits of

i
all contracts, grants, invoices, malerials, payrolls, records of personnel, Data (as defined in G-

- section 9.1) and other information relaling|to all maners covered by this Agreement. As used in

this paragraph;, "Grantee” includes ali persons, notural or fictional, affiliated with, controlied by, or
under common ownership with; the entity identified as the Grantee in 1.3 of G-1.

. 1ndependént Audit. The Grantee shall submﬂ onc audit done by one Cenified Public Accountant

{CPA) for the entire project, or, as.the State may rcqulr::, for any pari of the project upon demand.
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Monies required for payment 6f the audit shall ‘be set aside in the Grant Budget for that specific
purpose.. '
26.10.1 In the event the audit reveals that monlcs are due and owing (o.the State from the:

-Grantee, {or whatever reasons, (he Grantee. shnll pay to the State-such sums within thirry
(30) days of the audit date. =

‘The Grantce shall submit quarterly pcrformancc drug .and alcohol, nnd charter activily scports

‘within 30 days -of the cag of each quarter ; aud shal) submit any (orms, information or reports

required by the State to complete the FTA’S National Transit Database (NTD).reporting.
Geacral Transit Feed Specification (GTFS). Thic Grantee shall genetale and kecp updated General

Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submit related data for reporting to the National Transit - - . ™
‘Databasc (NTD) as required, The Grantee shall submit reldtéd data to the State upon request.

Amend C-l by adding "I’ROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY" as Sccllon 27:

PROJECT .EQUIPM ENT AND REAL PROPERTY: The followmg terms and conditions
apply 1o ai| equipmeat and real’ property [pun:hused in whole or in part with funds provided
through this‘or other Agreements between'the State and the Grantee:

All procurcments shall be made in accordancc with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220.1F and
future amendments; and with Buy America ‘réquirements; 49 CFR Ponts 661 and 663.

Alivehiclesshall be purchased by the State-unless the:Grantee has received prior approval from
the State-to procure vehicles.

Ali other equlpment with g cost in excess of five hundred (SSOO) per unit shall be.purchased by
-the Graniee subjett io the prior approval of the State.

Title to all project equipment. funded or othenwsc provndcd by the Grantce shall be in the-pame
of the Grantet; prévided, however, that the Greniee shatl give the Siate a security intérestin all
such equiproent ar. the ime of purchase an‘d shall ex¢cute financing statements and do all other
acts necessary or useful to the perfection of {hat interest and the renewant thereof. Tn connection
with the purchase of any -motor vehicles pursuant to fhis‘Agreemen, the'Grentee shall- give the
Siate o security interest in the motor vehicles at. the time of. purchose.and shall take all steps
necessary (0 protect the State’s security tnlcrest including taking steps 1o identify the Staie as a
lien holder of such motor vehicles on e motor vehicle titles.

In the eveat ihat this Agrccmcm 18 u:rmm‘ated all project cquipment and. property become the
property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to such equipment shall be
transferred to the State as soon as feas:blt:E Project equipment Will be disposed ol in zccordarnice
with FTA Circular 9040.1G and the State Managcmcnl Plan unless wrirten approval is received.

Aménd G-1'by adding “EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION” as section 28:

EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grintce shall maintain o current inventory listing of
all Project Equipment and Real Property involved in this: Agreement. The Grantee shall submit
10 the State a certification that the Project Eqmpmcnl and Real Property as referenced in Section
-27, is still being used in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. The inventory listing and
equipmeént certification shall be supplied to the State on an annual basis beginning Junc 30, 2024.

Aménd G-1 by adding “TRAINING AND|DRSVER REVIEW" as scction' 32:
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.32, “TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW. Thc State may requtr: participation in training courses
+ . determined to be essential to FTA program management in this grant period and ‘may require
N _pamcnpanon in such training programs as it deems necessary. by. drivers and .other employees
" involved. in the transportation of the, publlc Training may inciude defensive driving, passenger
- .. pssistence; emergency procedures. and- penoduc refresher tratning every three (3) years. The
.Grantee agrees that the State shall fiave Lhe right ta review the performance of all drivers who are.
. employed in connection with this Agrccmtnt ond o disaltow the use of. any driver whose
" performance. as a driver is delermined to be unsatisfactory by the Staie.
; \
.- A13. -Amcad G-1 by adding “SAFETY REQUIREMENTS” as section 33:

33, . SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. As applicable, all projecl equipment shall be mspcctcd and

' centified by the.Depanment of Safety and sllalt meet al applicable Federnl Motor-Vehicle Safery

.+ "Standards and Federal Mowr Carier Safcty Repulations as required by the United States

i ol R LT ~Department-of Transportation; ‘and- by thc New-Hampshire: Department ‘of-Safety under-RSA
266:72-3, in the purchase and opératibn of all project cquipment.

"33, ) As spplicable, the Grantee shall provide the State with {ul, and prompt written notification
T o of any aceident m\'olvmg any vchrc!e used inits Services. [n addition, the Grantee shail be
responsible to report any. .accident in compliance iith State law.

.. -332.  The Grantee shal} submit to the Statc by February 15 éf each ycar a report covering the

- previous year (Janpary 1 through Dcccmber 31), sununarizing the results of its alcohol

- misuse--prevention- and anu-drug—programs on FTA-approved forms. This-shall betin
compliaice with 49 CER Part 655.

' L3333 "Thc Grantee shall, submﬂ *any dnta/documcmauon rclatcd to FTA's Tronsit, Assct
.. Managemeat or Public Traf\Spbnanon Agcenéy” Safety Plan purposes as, r:qmrcd by
NHDOT for compliance purposes:

A.l4. Amend G1 by ndding 4SERVICE LIMITATIONS" os section 34:

34.  SERVICE LIMITATIONS. The Grantee shal not engage in the provision Services-otherthan
those” described -in Exhibit B, or cutside|the service-area described in Exhibit B, without the
wrilten conseni of the Stale and, as applicable, without obtaining the appropriate operating
authority. The Granlee shall not engage m charter o school bus operafions except as permined

by 49 CFR Parts 604 and 605, rcspccuvcly

AJ5. Amind G-1 by adding “GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS” as scction 35:

35,  GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS. The Grantee warrants that with respect to the Services to
be performed, it has obtained ali--lic’enses,[ permits, or approvals which are required by any law,
order or regulation of any authority, sfatc or federnl, or which may be necessary for the
perfarmance of the Services hereunder. Thc Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Services shall be qualified to perform such Scrvices and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Services undér all apphcablc laws.

A.16. Amend G-1 by adding *LABOR PROVISIONS" as section 36:

36. LABORPROVISIONS. The Grnntcc=ngrecs to adhiere to the terms and conditions.of the.Unified
Proteclive Arrangement, Section 5333(b) of 49 USC 51 or as amended, mcorporated hereis for
the protection of the employees of any employer providing transportation services assisted by
this Agreement, and, the employees of any other surface fransponiation provtdc:s in the
trarisportation service area identified in Exhibit B.




L AdT Amend G-1 by adding “FPATENT RIGHTS" as section 37:

o

. PATENT.RIGHTS. {f any invention, improvement. or discovery of the Grantee is conteived or

first actually reduced 1o practice -in thc course of or under this grant, which invention,

-improvement of discovery may be patculnb!e under the laws of the United States or any foreign
...country, the Grantee shall immediately noufy lhe Sratc and provide 3 dclmlcd report. ‘The rights

i ndlscovcry will be détermined in sccordance with applicable’ Federal Taws, regulanons pohc:es B L
“and.any waiver thereof, '

A8 Amcnd G-1 by ndding “BROKERAGE R%’.PRESENTAT!ON” ns section 38:

38,

]

'BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION, The Grantee warranis that it has not employed or
rctamcd any tompany or pefson, other than|a bona-fide employce working salely for the Grantec,
to solicit or secure. this Agreement; and (hat it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or

" péison, other than o bona:fide Employee \\I-'"o'rkmg solély’ for. the Grantee, sty féé,commission,

© percenyage, brokerage fee; gifts or any other considcration, contingent upon.or resulting from the

- award or.making of this Agreement. For brcach or violation of this warranty, the State shail have

“the right to -annut this Agreement wnhoul liability or, in its discrétion, to deducl from the

" Agreement price or consideralion, or omerw:sc recover, the full amount.of such fee, commission,
perccntngc hrokcrngc brokcrage fec, gift, or contingent fee.

rplamommb g Bt g e
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COOPERAT[VE ALLIAN CE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION, DBA COAST
s " i EXH!B!T B :
SCOPE OF, SERVICES

Al Thc Grantee, CooPcrauvc Alilancc for Scacoast Transportauon (hereinafler 1hc
: - *Grantee™) will provide lransportation services as described in its Federal Transit =
" Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Enhanced Moability of Seniors and Individuals willy .'. s
... Disabilities Regiona! Coordinating Coun’cll {RCC) grant application to the New
e R Hampsharc Depnnmcnt of Transponannn Buréau of Rail and Transit (hcrcmaﬂcr “lhc
.. State™). - - ; "

_ 2. The Gramee wiil serve as the lead agency for Région 10 Southeast for FTA Section 33 IO
T REC funds to provide accessible lmnsportahon SErvices 10 Seniors and individualswith, -
- disabilitics in cooperation with the Reglon 10 Southeast RCC. This project is for the .
- period July 1, 2023 ~ June 30, 2025. The Grantee's grant application is heréby
-7 ~incorporated by reférence and made par of this agreernent. The Granice agrees to provide. -
" all services indicatéd inthe grant spplication unless modified per this agreement.

Lo 3. The following terms and conditions apply i0 all of the FTA Section 5310- fundcd services -
. .for seniors and |nd|wduals wu.h disabilities provided by Grantee pursuant (o this.”
e ._agrccmcm

~_.a: “The-State may require.the Grantee to provide. pdditional transportation sérvices.orto .+ -
-+ reduce transporiation services provndcd under ihis-grail. Any alterations to such 44
N '.: transportation services shall be submitted in writing by the State to the Grantee. The -~
.. Grantee shall implement the altcmuons within thinty (30) days unless a dlffcrcnl %
“ - timeframe is.agreed o by the State and the Grantee.

.- b, "Mability managerment activities, and as applicable, transportation services,
... ‘subgrantees, and maximum retmbursemcm rates, shall consist.of those submitted in -
~".the Grantee's 5310 Regional Coordmaung Council (RCC} application or as :
" subsequently modifiéd by the State through written notification to the Grantée.
.. -Further amendments to mobility mar'lagcmcnt activities, iransportation services,
. " subgrantces, andfor maximum reimbursement rates require RCC approval, as
. 7 documented in offictdl minutes, as \\'{cll as written approval from the State.

" ¢. Eligible Regional Mability Manager expenses shall be limited to those directly ;
" related 1o the position’s role as described within the 2016 “New Hampshire Statewide =
"' Coordination of Community Transportation Services Plan” and/or within the most
oo pecent “New Hampshire Statewide Mobitity Manager Network: A Bluepring for -
. Implementation”, both hereby incorpo'ratcd by teference. Roles may be {urther
~modificd based on those fecommcndcd by thc Statewide- Coordlnaung Council (SCC)
and approvcd in wnlmg by the Statc -




All services provided shall conform. lo FTA Section 5310 guidclines. Per FTA
requircments, the Grantee shall be rcspons;b!c for oversight of subgrantees and
contractocs relative to FTA rcqucmcnts.

The Grantee shall ensure the provision of ADA-accessible services within the RCC
region. Any marketing materials, brochurcs, and other service information shall
describe it as ADA-accessible. it is ac'ccptabic for a subgrantce/Tower tier subrecipient -
that does not utilizé accessible vchicle!s to contract with an accessible provider in

order to meet this réquirement.

The Grantee must fulfill its contractunl obligations and provide its scope of services iy
_throughout the Grant périod regardless of expenscs exceeding the maximym atfowed * -7
1o be reimbursed.: As necessary, the Grantee shall establish. trip prlormcs to ensure

funds are-not éxpended prematurely.

The State may requiré the Grantee to provide additional transportation services or' 1o
reduce transportation. services provndcd under this Grant. Any alterations to.such
transportatidn services shall be subinilted in writing by the State to the Grentee, The .
Grantee shall implement the alierations within thirty (30) days uniess anather:
nmc_fr_a_mg i5 agreed to by the State and the Grantee.

P e




COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION, DBA: COAST:'?-:-'_'-_-.'_T e
- CEXHIBITC
BUDGET

I The Grant price, as-defined in Section 1.8 ofthe General Provisions, are.the FTA Section -
53 IO pomon of the eligible pro;cct costs. Federal (FTA} funds are granted as-follows:

_ SFY 2024 SFY 2025
| ETA Section 5310 | ]
Contracted Services : $172.600 $172.600
Mobility Management Activitics $166,806 $166,806 Erhimiis SRR
| . Regional.Mobility Manager. Position_|. . .$109,504.|. .$109594 1. . "
" [Tota) FTA Section 5310 Fonds $449,000 1 $449,0007 -
Ao Total Two-Year Grant Funds 3 $898.000 '

"Funds gre contingent updn Federal-and State appropriations.

=+ 1.7 Not less than fourteen days prior to the wbmnssuon of the Grantee's first request for
.-+ reimbursement, the Grantee shall submit lo the State a budget incorporaling all funds to be S
-_expended in {he pravision of services pursuant (o' this Grant. Budget revisions may be made :'_ i
... ~with written approval of the State. Unless otherwise advised by State, budget revisions may '
. only request the lransf‘cr of funds within a'catcgory or between catcooncs with thie, samc
U matching. nmo

e L :-_‘_Thc Grantee midy seek réimbursement [or thcsc funds by submitting amonthly or quarterly )
. invoice for the-total eligible expenses, lcss sgency match as applicable to State. The i mvmcc
-~ mustinclude verification of source(s) of- matching funds and statements from service .
. providers, as apphcable, 10 support the request for matching funds.

e 1P " Mobility management.costs shall bc itemized.and include such information as mquumd to
7L - support the request.

o 2 : “ The Grantee will verify that reimbursement is for non-Medicaid-cligible trips only.

-.¥.- For expenses other than contracted scmces the Grantee may seek reimbursement only for
“. eligible éxpenses listed:in the budget.and dcmli-of cost form provided by the State, withthe . .- -
“ . ‘exception-of funds Spcmﬁcally reserved, if sny, and identified in “Specifically Programmcd
i Funds * al the end of this Exlubn

3 _ V1. - Arthe solediscretion of: lhc State, the Grantee may carry fonwvard any unexpended portion
- -~ of the federal {unds included in the: Gran lPriceto a subsequent Grant, if any, between the -
. State and.the Grantee. ...




COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOST TRANSTPORTATION, DBA: COAST * Ra
" .CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING EXCEMPTION i,

' Coopcranvc Alliance for Seacoast Transponation (COAST) does not nced a Certificaté of .~ -
Good Stnndmg bccausc thcy are.an cstabhshed “public body" per RSA 239:2. -7




Section 239:2 Cooperative Alliance for Seacoas! Transportation Established. . -. - ..~ "o T il ‘Page 1 ofd

o ".TRAI;II;gdgTATION e
- | CHAPTER 239 M
COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION .
' Section 239:2
239:2 Cooperative Ailiance for Seacoast Transportation Established; — There is hereby established a public body . - -
corporate and politic having a distinct tegal existence sepasate from the state and ool constituting a department or
agency of the siate government to:be known as the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation, aiso known as -
COAST. The public purpose of COAST isto acquire, own,and operate or cause to be operated a.regional mass .. -

transporfation system.

Source, 1985, 185:1, eff. July 27,1985, -

hutp://www.gencourt.state.ah.us/rsa/html/XX/239/239-2. htm 3125/2015



CORPORATE RESOLUTION -

1, Deanis Shanahan (name}, hereby certify that { am a duly elected Officer of the Cooperative
" _Afliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST). | hereby certify the following is a true copy of a
- ._ 'vote taken at a meeting of the duly authorized Executive Committee of the Board of Directors,

duly calied and.hetd on April 24, 2023, at which a8 quorum of the Committee were present and *

. -voting.

|
VOTED: That Rad Nichols, Executive Director is duly authorized to enter into

contracts or agreements on behalf of COiAST with the State of New Hampshire
and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any
documents which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to affect

.the purpose of this vote..

| hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and

effect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains - .. ..

valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Cbrporate Resolution. 1 further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hamgpshire will rely on this Certificate as evidence that the
‘person listed above currently occupy the position indicated and that they have full authority to
bind U'.IE corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of the listed
individual to bind the corporation in contracts wlith the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.

Date: AP0 v 2*’1_} 2027 Attest: :
Signature

Dennis Shanahan, Chairman of the Board
Name & Title
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CERTIFICATE OF LlABlLlTY INSURANCE

CATE {NWDOYYY)
12132022

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLBER. |

TS CERTIFICATE IS {SSUED A5 A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND COHFERS [ {*] RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTVIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEN‘D OR ALTER THE COYERAGE AFFORDED BY: THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE [SSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

this certficate does not :onfu rlgh!.s to the cmlﬂcnh hoider in fisu of suct

erdorsoment(s).

IMPORTANT: (f the certlilcate holdec i3 an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ics) musst have ADDITIONAL INSURED provislons or be endorsed.
It SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjoct to the térm3 and conditions of the polly, corin policies may require an endersement -A'statament-an

[ srooucen e °°ﬁ£_"c' Kari Loo-
FIAUCros Insurance [PRoRE " (503) 6693210 1AV tiop, (B0 645-4331
+100'Elm Sueo! AOORRES: mnd\ccmmugm.mm
INSURER(S] AFFORDYG COVERASE HAC e
Manchesles NH 0310 wsunzaa; Natonzd inicreisls Ins, Co. 2020 .
INSURED wsurgan; NH Malor Trnapont
Coopefative Aligncs (r S€2t035! TIZASpONEION WESURBA C 2
42 Sumnat'Ordve ISURER O ¢
I WIUARA K :
Dovet Rl 03020 INSURERF :
. COVERAGES CERTFICATE NUMBER: _-22-23 All Uinos REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEM ISSUED TO THE WSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INCICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERI OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WATH RESPECT YO WHICH THs
CERTUICATE MAY BE ISSUED GR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED 8Y THE POUGIES DEG CRIBED HERE/N (S SUBJECT TU ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUCIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY.PAID CLAIMS.
A T TR .
k) TYPE OF WSURANCE walveen POLICY MIRBER { } § P Coarts
] cosutrtar GoNDRAL LABRITY EACH OCCURRENCE 5 5.000,600
ORI YO RERT
Janmsacor [ occum | EAEWES @ poporency |3 100090
"""I ! MED EXF pAver aes preriany = 3 5,000
A “_J GLR 0241805-01 VRNZ022 | 10V202) § peqcorae daovaoury | | 5 5.000.000
GEM?, AGGREGATE LIVIT APRUES FER: OUENALACSREGATE | 3 5.000.000
12X} soucy = e PAODUCTS “Comprp Ao | s+ 5.000.000
] b OTER: . T "
- AUTOMOBILE LABIUTY rﬁw bal 1.3 250.000
. AIY AUTD a BOOKLY WURY (Par partar®. | §
A L :ug&s A v - CAR 024180504 VU022 | 11017202 | DOOLY ILUSY (Per sockiers); | 3
NONOWHED (RGP GIIEE
>_< AUTOS OHLY ALITOS OsY T apteoilc L%
Madical Payments 1 5,000
| jumsraaauan O poam L EACH OCCURRENCE s
A EXCESS AR [ cimessce EXR 02412805-01 R, o RTPAT L ppee— .
__loen [ freremons 2y £
WORKERS COMPENSATION _Ww
AMD EXPLOYERS LABAITY you ] Sy gn T
Sl Pt e MG g wia POOODA INHMTAZ023 610172023 | 01012026 |EL EACH ACCOENT, S
sndatery in FH) £1 OSEASE- EAEURLOVEE | s 1000000
# yts, Soscrbe under ; ' 1.000,000
scumo!miulsw ELOSEASE.-POUCYLINT" J E - pd
Excasy LEabiity Oves the Atto Lianilry = Seste0
A p;em"m DDX 0241805-01 ¥101/2022 | 110172023 | Deductutie 540,000
DEICR:PIION OF OPERATIONS f LOCATIONS, | YEXICLES {ACORD. 10T Avionsl Asmarks Fcheoule, may be 40cted ¥ mers 0pacs s resuinad) s
-Public Oiciots Liabiity o meRRML e
POLOS51408-0) X,
HIO12021 - V012027 T e P
Indinn Harbor trdiranca Co. g I
Limit $1.000.000

CANCELLATION

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

MHDOT, Bureay of Rall end Transit

SMOULY ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED DEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREDF, NOTICE WILL B DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

Am: Pauls Bennett
7 Hazen Drive, PO Box 483

Concord NH 03302.0433

AL) THORLITED RLPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 {2016/01)

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights roserved.

The ACORD name and logo ro reglistored marks of ACORD



_ 'Cqﬁﬁquions end-Assurances _ Fiscal Year 2022

FEDER.AL FISCAL YEAR 2023 CERT]I‘ICATIONS AND ASSU’RANCES FOR FTA

'ASSISTANCE’ PROGRAMS

(Signature pages altemate to providing Ccmﬁcanons and Assurances in TtAMS.)
75

Name of Applicant: C—’TW‘-“J& Ar\ \MCE. RL_ gabui T_"-‘-wr‘.wbaﬂ (COAS

"The Applicant. ccmﬁcs 1o the apphcab!e provisions of all categonies: (chack here)

Or,
|

-+ The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisiorlxs of the catepories it has selecled;

)

.02

.03

. ".___Cat'egp_ry o Certification
._..Cmiﬁcations and Assurances Required ofI'Evcry Applicant | / ‘
.-...fPublic'Tmz_lsponnﬁon Agency Safety Plans | . / _

. .jraxLiubﬁity:ané _fcl_qpy-@qgvictions ! R --—- -

o4 "_._L.-obbyius “ : 7
- 05  Pnvate Scctor Prolections l/

06  Transit Asset Management Plan | /

07  Rolling Sibck Buy Ameraca Reviews and Bus Testing /

08  Urbanized Ar¢a Formula Grants Program /

09  Formula Grants for Rursl Arcas /

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investmeni Gra.nfts and the Expedited

Project Delivery for Capital Investment Graots Pilot Program
il

Graats for Buses and'Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs /




Gentifications end Assurinces Fiscal Year 2023

12 Enhanced Mobzhty of Seniors spd Indxuduals with. stab:lm&c
Programs

ol
13 State of Good Repair Grents i | ‘ ; ~
14 Infrastructure Finance Programs r | ; . -
13 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testin‘g /
16  Rail Safety Training end Oversight
17 Demand Respogsive Service ;
18  ‘Intesest and Financing Costs l/

19 Cyberscourity Certificalion for Rail Rolling Stock and

Operatons:
20 Tribal Transit Programs | . e p— :
21 Emergency Relief Program. e

" ICERTIFICATIONS AND (.S'ARI.A
. APFTRMATION OF APPLICA.NT

Name of e Appliants COMLQI\«E A“Wra: gn, Cazwaﬂl ’faa-M( 9&«. ((DAST

BY SIGNING BELOW, on hchaironh: Applicany, | deciare. l)m W has duly suthorized me io make Giese
Cinifications and Assuiances and bind it compliance, Thus, it agmu to commply-with,of} foderat laws, rgitations,
and requiréments, follow oppticablc federal guidance, and comply with the Centifications and ASJurancrs as
indicaled oo the farcgoing page applicable to cach application its Amhonzed Repeercniative makes to-the Federn!

Translt Administration (FTA) in Uhe foderal Biscal year, inupaczivc of whether the individus] tal-scted oo his.or

her Appliczot's behalf continues to repeaént it
I

The Certifications sod Assurances the Applicant selecty: npplywacbd\wmdtmwuhumnds,mm
tater sock federnl assistance to be awieded by FTA during te fedent fiscal year,

The Applicant afficriss the truthfulness und scouracy of the Caﬂﬁaum and Assurances it has selected fa dhe
setcments submied with this document and any oth:r:ubmx:ston made o FTA. trd ocknowledpes that the
Program Fracd Civil Remedics act-of 1936, 31 U.S.C. § 3501 umq.. «id implemeating US. DOT regulstions,
“Program Frauvd Civil Rmdn-.:." 49 CFR pan 3 ,appty o any mmﬂm atIurante o1 rutm:ntcn made to
FTA. The crimina! pfom-wns of 18 1).5.C. § 1001 apply to any c«dﬁauoa. Essurence, of submission mide in
conoection with » federal public tansportition program uuthomedbyﬂ U.S.C. chapters 53 ar any other siamie




... Centificdtions and Assurances:

Fiscal ‘;’ca,r 2023

In signing thes da:umml. } dectare i} . m forepoing Cetificadons and Assurances, and

any other ¢ gus end cccurale,
" Sigeature S 5 S Datc: 22 .
P Name_ EAX l\J ) LL\ !f ‘ Autborized Representative of Applicant

AFFIRMATION OF APRLICANTS A

Fot (Name of Applican); . CO"‘D:I‘A\\-F ‘k \O\ﬁ(rTQf &‘-c'-:‘-S“;_‘:ﬁ»—*AA\ "G‘ONST\/ :

" A3 the undersigned Atlomey. l‘afnu::.buve mdnpplmz.lbmbynfﬁmmuuawiuuwl b has sutharily
-. .uadcy sate, bocal, or tribal govecsment hw.u-ppliublr..mmumdemply with the Certificaiionaand’

. &nmmumdmhdnhfm‘mqmlﬁmhulﬁmmmmqimm e Certificatihos and

. Assureoces havebeen kegully cxxde ind constinue legal and lnndm] obligadons on it

© [ furthés sffiem m;muubwdmymwtmggm uml:gnhﬁmo:lnugw pmdmao: iraminend that
-nlght :dvtrsely affecc l.hc vahduycflbu:

fifications and Assufances, or of the performance of its-FTA

Daie: ztG‘Z *

Anomy for, Applicent,

Tdqerd ctﬁ\ T

ot ‘ Eoch Apglicutfarfcdaul nr.rimrm ld‘bc owarded by FT4 lld'rprmndt an dffrrmation of Applicont 1 Atlofucy
. partaining 1o ihe Applican)’ ) degal, cupacity. The Applicent Py nier i1s elecironic tignoture in lieu af the

_ Attdmcy’s signature within TYAULS, pravided the Applicart has nn f file ond wplogdid 1o T‘rAMS this hard-copy
Wmm :lgn:d by thé attarriey and dofed ihis federe!  flico! yeer,




CERTIFHCATE

I -
- NOW.COMES, Rad Nichois, Executive Director of ICooperalive Alliance-for Séacoast
. ‘Transportation, a.New Hampshite corporation formed pursuant to NH RSA 239:2 ("COAST"), In

.- order to allow Donahue, Tucker & Ciandelia, PI.LC to affirm to-COAST's Federal Transit
. .Administration {*FTA"} FY2023 Certuf;catlons and Assurances. affirm$ and states as follows:

1... That thére Is no legislation o litlgation pendlnig orimminent that r'mg'ht adversely affect the
' validity of the Certifications and Assurances, or the performance of COAST's FTA Praject of
‘ .ijects ‘
2. - Donahue, Tucker & Ciandefla, PLLC shall be entltled to rely on this Cert:ﬁcate in renderlng its

Affirmation to the FTA. |

' .,!l_\_l WITNESS:WHEREOF, the underslgned set his | hand thistt day of Fehruary 2023

.

CODPERATWE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST

.
‘ . " TRANSPORTATION
|
|
I
|

Rad nichols, Execytive Director
Duly Authorized

42 Sumnar Drive, Dover, NH 03820  PHONE (603} 743-5777  FAX (503} 743.5766 www.Coastbus.org
|
i
COAST champions and provider custugier Rocused public trovupinstion with 3 conunitment o ercellrace iv salety and service.



. BFY 2022 MASTER AGREEMENT ..
| , :

'..xcw:o'.\\uocémzw-r OF RECEIPT

The Faderal Viansit Administration (TTA)H cdoral Fikeal Year 2022 Master Agrecneni

s requires n:u.!ptc.m:. and subrecipienls o cnmpl\ with the: rcquu'cmcuu urmamcd w the

_Bgreement in order o rensive Foderal funds The tunguuge vontained in the Master
 Aprezmeat must he incorporaied into the aumzmstmuou of the ngrecinent my autney has

. wilh the New Hampshire Dipadiment of 7 r.nsgmrmnon (NFIDOT).

_ ,l acknowledge reeeipt 68 the FTY 2022 Federa) Transit Administmion (FTA) Masier

Apreement und usdiistand this agreement is referred 1o io my agency’s agrecinent wilh

'_11.,zc-mcm S

" 'Nunwof Apency -

Rad Nichois
Nume of Aathorized Officia)

e N'HDDI' by nﬁ.n.ncc.. The Muslcr A,wcmcnl reruaing in force !or the ® tenp: af lhc '

. ' L F [

Clone 72020 i P

D ¢ A

Slgn;uux*



L e partment -drf-mp-nu.l-n

. FTAand 2CFR 200:Agreement .I e Revised 07/18/2022. ... .. .. 3 j

FTA and 2 CFRi200 Agreement |
|

... Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Adminisiration (FTA)

" Name of Recipient Agency: New Hanipshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

.. Name of Subrecipient/Confracting Agency: Cooperative Alliance for Séacoast Transportation -

L Coapcralive Alliance for Seacoas! Tmmorm:mn shall comiply with all applicable federai
... laws, regulations, and requirements as outtined i |n the most recent Federa) Transit Administration .-

' (FTA) Master Agreement and Eederal Cert:ﬁcntlom and Assurances. This-award includes.

information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

. FTA sward. project dc’mcrintidn; (As required to B¢ respansive 1o the Fedeial Funding Accouinbilify and

' Federal Award Date:9/121

Transparency Act {FFATA)

Amount: $898,000
- Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CI‘DA)'numbcr-"JO 513
- FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5310 RCC PROGRAM APPLICATIONS
"‘Federal Award ldentification Number (FAIN): NH-ZOZI-OIG«UI

" Contact information for stib-awnrdlﬁg oﬂ'c:all
Name: Michelle L. Winters Title: Director of Acronauuos Rail & Transit

Email: Michelte.L. Winters@dotnh.gov Phone: 603 271-2449
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT’s cost rate. for. the federal award: N/A

Sp brecipient/Contractor Information:
Subrecipient/Cantractoc Namié: Cooperative Alli:lmcc Jfor Seacoast Transpértation

Subrécipient/Contracior SAM.GOV {.D.: RTMZF;GSLQGSAI

Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Rad Nichols
Title of authorizing subrecipiént/contracting oﬂicliai: Executive Director
Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Centifications and Assurances; Yes

Subrecipient/Contractor Federal indirect cost rmc N/A

({An approved federally recognized indireci cest rate ncgonalcd benween the subrecipient/coniractor and the:Federal
Govermneni or, if no sucl rare exisis, either a rate negona'led benveen the pass-ihrotigh entity and the subrecipient
{in compliance with this part). or o De Minimis indirect coiﬂ raje as defined in §200.4 14 Indifect. (F&A) casts,

paragraph (f)).

Subaward Pcriod of pérformance;
Start Date: 7/1123 End Date: 6730725



H 'Dq-w-ma qr rmmp-nuhu
FTA 2nd 2 CFR'200 Agreement Révised 07/18/2022

“Totat amaint.of FTA sub-gward oblipated by this.action feontract/amiendment):

" “For FFY: 2024 Section: 5310 RCC Améunt: ss‘%,oqq

i ._‘l‘otal damount of FTA sub-award committed to the. Subrdﬂp_cnf_[angma! coniract & nmendmenua
2 __.For FFY:2024 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: 3898 060

- Pass-through requirements:

. | :

_..The Subr:cipient!Comractor Cooperative Allmnce for Seatoast Transportation ngrees to meet ~
..all requirement imposed by the pass-through cnuty (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the

Federal award is used in accordance with chcra! statues, regulations and the terms and

"~ condifions of the Federa) award. !

" The Suibrecipient/Contraclor, Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation agrees 1o any
. additiohal requirements that the pass-thirough cnuly (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in

; _order for-the pass-through entity (NHDOT) in ordcr for the pass:through entity (NHDOT) to

«.. Date:

. -meet its own responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any
-, required financial and performance repoits.

.- ‘The‘Subrecipient/Contractor, Cobperative Alliance for Seacoast Transpartation agrees to
pcnmr lh: pnss-through cnuty (NHDOT) and 8UdllOl’S to havc access 0 the subrccnplents rccords




- Dintrict

|

Ce03-858-575L FG BRIGGES JR CFA
- Internat Revenue $ervice

Attachment #17
‘5310 RCC Granl.SFY221,2_3

. Dlegtor COAST/ACT

' -Cooperestive Allisnce
B Transpcrtation
-1 water Street

L Exeter, WM. cae3z

fer Seatesst

. Gentlemen:

: |
o This modifies cur letter of, the atiove
' n erganizetion which s nct

- you woulc te trested as a

BS7 Pdz  APR 17.'91 14:50 .

h

Department of the Treasury

P.0. 8or 1630, GFO Brooklyn, N.Y. 11207

Employer: Identificaticn number;
C<-0362578 i o
Cur Letter Catec:
August 31, 1sez .
Person tc Contact:

k., Lawrence
(antact Telechgne humter : e T
(€17) 222-€534 | SIS

cetz 1n which we stzted thet -
a privete feunpztion

.- UNtid the expiraticn of your aevan:?é ruling geriod,

Bszed on the information

e
2 e

. Internal Revenue Cece, beceuse
-degerited in sectien 5G%(a)(l}

f

you are
. ¢ 4 . enc 12&(B}H2)(A) (ve),
uncer. section 5G1(c)(2) e¢f the Lege_fa still in.effect. . mm- - i

‘ Crentcrs enc cerntributors méy‘ rely ofv this E‘e.:ezminaticn until the
- Intemal Revenpe Service publishgs notice to tre contrary,
- ..-grentcr or a contributor may rot rely on this cetermiraticn {f

ycu submitted, we hsve cetermineq teat you -
nct a pcivate foundation within the meaning of sactien 5€5(a) of the - .

an

organdzstion of the typs . .-
Your exempt ststus

loweyer, e
e or ske

was In part recponsitle for, or was aware ef, the sct or failure to sct

that resultec in your less

_ of secticn 17G(E) (1) (R)(vi) ststus
knowledpe that the Intsrnal Reveruel Service has civen nctice tﬂa

or ecguirec
t yeu weould

be remcvec from ¢lsssifietion es e 'section 170t} (1) (R) (vi) crgsrizeticn,

Because this letter

could he
privste fourcaticn status, please kee

In resolve eny cuestiens ebout your

p It In your pemanent recorcs, - ]

If you have any cusstiens, please contact the pei-son wvhose nere snc
telephone nunter sre shown in ths heeding of this letter.. .

o] o]

Sincersly yours,

'/;%Dlstri'ct’r'heétcr _
T —

Letter 1GEC{00)(7-77)
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-COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

- FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AI‘\ID SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
" 'FOR THE YEARS ENDED.SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021

® 3 owmo»

e _CONfENTS
3 E Page
-.. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT.. - ™. 1-3,.°
'~ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘Statements of Financial Position i
|
" Statements of Activities !
- Statement of Functional Expenses, 2022
 Statement of Functional Expences, 2021
. Statements of Cash Flows N i
 Notesto Financial Statements 9-16 .- -
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
Grant Expenditures - Operating Grants 1?7
Grant Expenditures - Other Grants 18

Grant Expenditures - Capital Grants : 19




REDERICK Q. BRIAGS, JALCPA - . = "+ TELEPHONE: 60J-608-1340 MEMBERS OF THE

_ Y T.CAWSON.CPA . B e T g T FAX 603-858-6751 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF
> m_.x PAUL, CPA _ g '. . . WWW FABRIQGSYRCPA.COM CERTIAED PUSLIC ACCOUNTANTS ...

.. .. Tothe Board of Directors
"-of the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation

" Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

; "-.Opinion
- "We have audited the accompanying fnnancsal statements of the Cooperative Alliance for
. Seacoast Transportation (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial
.. . 'positian as of September 30, 2022 and 2021, the related statements of activities, functional
_ "expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the financial
Statenents.,

I
L. DIIID, $R., WA

e PRQFESSIONAL'ASSOCLATION

; Ninety Eight Salmon Strect
“. Manchester, New Hompshire 03108

MEMBER FIAM OF AICPA
PRIVATE COMPANIES -y

]

- 'INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

5 ' December 24,2022

. in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
.- respects, the financial position of the Cooperatlve Alliance for Seacoast Transportation as of
~-_'.:eptember 30, 2022 and 2021, and the. changes in its net assets- and itz cash flows for- the
©oyears then ended in accudance wilh au.uunlmg principles genecally sccepted in the United .
" . States of America. . - - '

"' Basis for Opinion
‘We conducted our audits in accordance withI auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the [Comptroller Genera! of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
tor the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with thei relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audits. We believe that the audit evidence wia have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United States
of America, and for the design, impiementatio}n, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.




. In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
" conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the

" _Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Tfansportatnons ability to continue as a going concern . .

- within one year after the date that the financial stafternents are available to be issued.
I
" Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiol Statements
. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as

. 'a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonab!e assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore IS not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

" “accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards

" will always detect a material misstatement whep it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
. misstatement resulting from fraud is higher th@n for one resulting from error, as fraud may

_"invnive collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, . or the override of -
“internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
' that, individually or in the aggregate, they| would influence the judgment made by a -
" reasonable user based.on the financial statements. iy

“In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
... Gavernment Auditing Stondards, we: .

s Exercise professional judgm_e_n_t_ and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.
Slgats Smmiar demrk s e . S [P U _.' PN e s dwlaam Adime maf - . Foas e e el W
"» -ldentify and assess the risks of materlal misstatement of the financlal statements,
= .whether due to fraud or error, and desrgn and perform audit procedures responsive to
“those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the | circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast

Transportation's internal control. Accardinglv.ino such opinion is expressed.
i

i
s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by |management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
[
|
» Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
apggregate, that raise substantial doubt j;about the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast
Transportation's ability to continue as 2 going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those c}rarged with governance regarding, among other.
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and cerain
internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

[N




Supplementary information

. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financizl statements as

a whote. The accompanying schedules of grant expenditures are presented for purposes of

" additional analysis and are not a required part t|)f the financial statements. Such information is
“the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
- accounting and other records used to preparelthe financial statements. The information has

... been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the financial statements and
 certain additional ‘procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly

“to the underlying accounting and other records! used to prepare the financial statements or to

. the financial statements themselves, and oll'luer additional procedures in accordance with

. schedules of grant expenditures are fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the L

auditing standards generaily accepted in the Umted States of America. In our opinion, the

financial statements as a whole.
|

|
Other Reporting Required by Government Audmng Standards

- in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated

December 24, 2022, on our consideration| of the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast

- Transportation's internal control over financial| reporting and on our tests of its compliance

with certain provisions of laws, regulatians,, contracts, and grant agreements and other

.. matters. The purpose of that report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
- control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to

" provide an opinion on the effectiveness | of the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast
Transportation's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an

integral -part- of--an audit -performed—in -accordance with Government..Auditing. Stondards .in

considcring the Cooperative Alliance. for Scacoast Transporfatinn's internal control over. - ”
financial reporting and compliance. '

F. G. Briggs Jr, CPA
Professconalbisocialion




" COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

o .. -STATEMENTS COF FlINANCIAt. POSITION

" SEPTEMBER 3

- Assets =
.- Cash and equivalents o

Accounts receivable - grants
" Accounts receivable - other.
" Prepaid expenses
- lnventories
. Structures and equipment, net "

. TOTALASSETS

i

0, 2022 AND 2021

‘2022

$ 1,975,763
571,924

99,313

45,849

106,369
4,206,913

S 7,005,131

ILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIE

" Liabilities

=+ Accounts payable

......-Accrued expenses _
Refundable advances

TOTAL LIABIUTIES

Net Assets
Net assets without donor restrictions

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

- o e et

Ly TR P S T Y]

i
]

i

- R ki aam

S 215,364
302,703
78,972

597.039

6,409,092

6,409,092

2021

S 1,484,157
430,178

178,365

35,123

86,865
2,610,456

S 4,839,144 -

L T

S 149,269
252,183
43,787

445,239

4,393,905

4,393,905

S 7,006,131

$ 4,839,144

See Notes to Filnancial Statements

"4



: COQPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION
- STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
.. - FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021

: 2022 2021
© NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
... Support |

- -=...- Federal grants - operating and planning S 4,754,792 S 4,585,747
-, - State and local match - operating and planning 1,491,834 _ 1,435,501

"" Ridership revenue BT . 308,136 291,688

. - Advertising revenue e 212,807 118,745

- Other revenue (losses) : (13,603) 12,097
' _ ‘Interest income 2,281 1,804
Total W.itho.ut.Dp_ng_r Rgst_r_ictiqn;.Support 6,756,247 6,445,582

- Expenses TS A

. Program i e 5,479,575 5,942,148

- Administration e N 1,340,637 712,498

. Fundraising , 24,044 20,697

. Total Expenses | 6,844,256 6,675,343

Change in.Net Assets fro__m Operations ' (88,009) (229,761)

7 Other Changes o

Federal grants - capital S ! 1,897,693 238,310

Local match - capital ; 205,503 16,569

Total Other Changes : 2,103,196 254 879

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 2,015,187 25,118
Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions, Beginning of Year 4,393,905 4,368,787
Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions, End of Year S 6,409,092 s 4,393,905

See Notes to Filnancial Statements
| 5
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COOPERATIVE ALUANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

D 5 - R o “Total : =
‘Other -~ - Total ' - Admin- : - Fund- Supporting . Total
. Transit Maintenance _ Program ‘Program ‘istration - raising Services Expenses
Drivers' salaries $ 1,294,000 $§ -8 - $1,294,000 S - 5 > |5 - $ 1,294,000
Operations and administrative salaries 763,858 317,656 210,475 1,291,989 423,642 14,293 437,935 1,729,924
Payroll taxes 155,230 24,657 15,857 ‘ 195,744 30,813 1,093 31,906 227,650
Benefits 525,412 112,180 60,459 698,061 146,438 4,457 150,895 848,956
— . ——__Insurance.and other_fees ._ 46,205 5,666 2 - 51,871 480,292 - 480,292 532,163
Advertising 6,279 = 11,241 7,520 134,013 . 134,013 141,533
Consulting services 3,090 - J 2,879 5,969 43,385 - I - 43,385 49,354
Mechanical services . 62,744 ) . 62,744 - - - 62,744
Other services 58,345 17,047 1'61,507 237,859 21,807 - 21,807 259,706
Facilities cleaning - 17,261 . 17,261 - - . 17,261
Fuel/oil 539,166 - - 539,166 - - - 539,166
Tires, parts and supplies 35,262 145,849 - 185,111 - - -+ 1851311
Occupancy - 45,049 12,146 57,195 27,540 3,060 30,600 87,795
Dues and subscriptions 925 - : - 925 9,319 - 9,319 10,244
Travel and training 1,066 - + 1,066 5,102 - 5,102 6,168
Telephone 14,863 1,239 - 16,102 5,013 . 6,013 22,115
Office supplies 30,596 130 - 30,726 10,270 1,141 11,411 42,137
Depreciation 773,276 12,950 ' - 786,226 2,003 - 2,003 788,229
Total Expenditures $ 4,252,573 § 762,438 S 464,564 § 5,479,575 S 1,340,637 § 24,044 S 1,364,681 S 6,844,256

See Notes to Fihancial Statements
-



COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FO@}SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

SEPTEMEéﬂ 30, 2021
!
P |
e T T ol
: _Other - Total  Admin- - . Fuid- ' Supporting Total
Transit Maintenance  Program ‘Program ‘istration ‘raising Services Expenses
Drivers’ salaries S 1,381,370 § o~ 8 7 - $1,381,370 S -8 - S - $ 1,381,370
Operations and administrative salaries 777,888 316,761 199,549 1,294,198 336,090 11,883 347,973 1,642,171
Payroll taxes 168,331 24,717 15,400 208,448 25,425 09 26,334 234,782
Benefits 357,832 91,055 48,748 497,635 118,886 3,728 122,614 620,249
Insurance and other fees_ €0,889 424,354 - 485,243 23,268 - 23,268 508,511
Advertising 4,826 . . 1,560 6,386 56,135 . 56,135 62,521
Consulting services 2,593 - ;1;3,161 15,754 63,537 - 63,537, 79,291
Mechanical services . 85,959 ! - BS,959 - - - 85,959
Other services 49,308 34,607 102,583 186,498 20,202 - 20,902 207,400
Facilities cleaning 61 17,843 - 17,804 - - - 17,904
Fuel/oil 423,504 ol - 423,504 - - - 1 423,504
Tires, parts and supplies 47,778 335,339 - 383,117 - - - 383,117
Qccupancy ; - 41,124 11,122 52,246 24,570 2,430 27,000 79,246
Dues and subscriptions 2,104 - - 2,104 5,383 . 5,383 7.487
Travel and training 4,738 . v 4,738 1,227 - 1,227 5985
Telephone 17,502 1,665 - 19,167 6,257 . 6,257 25,424
Qffice supplies . 31,557 - ! - 31,557 17,667 1,747 19,414 50,971
Depreciation 830,421 15,899 - 846,320 13,151 - 13,151 859,471
Total Expenditures S 4,160,702 -5 1,380,323 § 392,123 5 5,942,148 § 712,498 [ 20,697 $§ 733,195 ‘S 6,675,343

See Notes to Fiﬁari;wl Statements.
s
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“e " COOPERATIVE ALUANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

- '
- FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021
- = [

* " Cash Flows From Operating Activities
... Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by (used in} operating activities:
Depreciation 3
Loss on disposal of assets
{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
{Increase) decrease in inventories
{Increasej decrease in prepaid expense
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable
Increase {decrease) in accrued expenses !
increase [decrease) in refundable advances
Total Adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities
*7.Cash Flows For Investing'Activities =~ * =" ©
Payments for the purchase of property and eguipment
Proceeds from the disposition of assets
Net cash used for investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivaients
Cash and equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and equivalents; end of year

$

2022

2,015,187

788,229
14,534

(62,694}

(19,504}
(6,726}
(3,277}
50,520
35,185

790,267
2,805,454

(2,359,590}
35,742

{2,323,848)

481,606

1,494,157

$

1,975,763

See Notes to Financial Statements

8

2021

$

25,118 .

859,471
(89,959)
(5.603)
(1,726)
82,585
(129,875)
(692)

714,201

739,319

T =

(292,138)

(292,138)

447,181

1,046,976

1,494,157

L



*'/-. NOTE 1: NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

COOPERA'I’IVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION -
- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ' =i

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022.

- Coaperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation {COAST) is organized as a Public Nonprofit Corporation . g
- and was formed in 1982 to promote and provide public mass transportation for southeastern New ' _' "
_Hampshire. The Organization provides administrative planning, para-transit, and coordination services. -~ "

. COAST receives approximately 75% of its funding d:rectly from the federal government. The batance of .

its funding comes from. Iocal sources, primarily mn'muctpalltles served bv the transrt routes 3

NO.IE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . T e et
asis of Presentation
' The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of
" Accounting and Financial Reporting for Not- for-Proht Organizations as promulgated by the American
..+ 'Institute of Certified Public Accounlants Thev are stated on the accrual basrs and include all material
- accounts receivable and payable. - B ;

., '~ Recent Accounting Pronouncements
3 .- Inlune 2018, the FASB.Issued.ASU,2018: OQ,.“Not-for Proht_qupg_.glarlfylng the.Scope.and. t_he
e Accounnng 2 Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made (Toprc 958)". The
2 ‘amendments in this Update provide a more robus{t framework to determine when a transaction should
~ . be accounted for as a contribution under Subtopic 958-605 or as an exchange transaction accounted for ...
“under other guidance ({for example; Topic 606). Tilie amendments also provide additional guidance about -~ "' :

" how to determine whether.a contribution is conditional. COAST adopted this ASU on October 1, 2020. . - e

' COAST implemented ASU 2018-08 using a full retrospective method of application. The adoption of ASU o
. ' 2018-08 resulted in changes to the disclosure of revenue. There were no material changes to the
" recognition or presentation of revenue as a resultiof the application of ASU 2018-08. As a result, no

- cumulative effect adjustment was recorded upon|adoption.

=t " In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
{ASU) 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)°. This ASU supersedes the revenue
recognition requirements in *Topic 605, Revenue IRecognition", and most industry-specific guidance. The
core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of
" promised goods or services to customersin an an!munt that reflects the consideration to which the ennty iy
. expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. ‘COASYT adopted, this. ASU on October 1,
fee 2020.
' |

iy COAST implemented ASU 2014-09 using a full retrospective method of application. The adoption of ASU i

j
2014-09 resulted in changes to the disclosure of revenue. There were no material changes to the

. recognition or presentation of revenue as a result of the application of ASU 2014- 09 As 3 result, no =iy

- cumulative effect adjustment was recorded. upon| adoption.




. "-COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION
C T NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

: SEPTEMBIER 30, 2022
|

; |
. 'NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLLCIES {continued)

" The majority of COAST's revenue is derived from clost-reimbursabie federal contracts and grants, which - .
_ - -are conditioned upon costs of providing transit services. Amounts received are recognized as revenue -
.. "when COAST has incurred expenditures in compltance with specific contract or grant performance
~requirements (incurring costs for prowd:ng transit services).

- “Einancial Statement Presentation
.. The Organization follows the recommendation of the Financial Accounting Standards Board as applicable
-.. to not-for-profit organizations. Under these standards the Orgamzanon is required to report anformat;on e
) regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets, as applicable: net -
. assets with donor restrictions or net assets without donor restrictions.

Descriptions of the two net asset categories are as follows:

~ The part of net assets of 3 not- -for-profit entity ‘that is subject to donor-imposed restrictions (donors -
“. «include: other types of.contributors, including. makers of.certain grants).. ... . .o e

i

RIERTEE: " Net Assets without Donor Restrictions (IR
R . The part of net assets of a not-for-profit that is not subject to denor-impgosed restrictions (donors B
include other types of contributors, including makers of certain grants}.

A donor-imposed restriction is a donor stipulation {donors include other types of contributors, including
makers of certain grants) that specifies a use for a contributed asset that is more specific than broad
limits resulting from the following:
a, The nature of the not-for-profit entity (NFP)
b. The environment in which it operates |
¢. The purpases specified in its articles of incorporation or bylaws or comparable documents for an
unincorporated association.

(]

The Qrganization reflects all resources vsed for orilerations as net assets without donor restrictions since
any restricted revenues are generally received and spent in the same year.

Receivables
No allowance for doubtful accounts has been reﬂected since management believes all accounts
receivable to be collectible. Accounts receivable wm be considered delinquent based on the contractual
terms of the'agreement. COAST does not assess interest on outstanding or past-due balances.

10




. COOPERATIVE ALUANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPOBTAIIQ.N. "
‘ '  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
" SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

. -- g |
- NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

'- Fixed Assets
" Structures and equipment are stated at cost if purchased or fair market value if contributed.

,_Depremanon is recorded on the straight-line meth!od over @ two to twenty-five year period. Expenditures
for additions, renewals and betterments of buildings and equipment, untess of a relatively minor
amount, are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

= |

" {oventory

B Inventory, which consists of fuel and bus parts, is

'stated at the lower of cost or market,

. lncome {axes
. . l,. . .
No income tax provision has been included in theihnanciai statements of COAST since it is a not-for-profit

-+ entity exempt from income tax under Section SOl(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. It has been
£ . classified a5 an organization that is not a private foundation. COAST has analyzed its tax positions and
has determined that there are no unrecognized tax abligations to record.

..-.........-1 h- | v e smas s tuen meem

. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, COAST consnders all unrestric

.- with an initiat maturity of three months or less o be cash equivalents, . .
Functional All ion of Expenses

The costs of providing various prograsns and supp'orting services are summarized on a functional basis in
the statement of activities, Expenses are directly/charged to the appropriate activity, where feasible.
The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to mare than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, they may require allocation on a reasonable basis that is
consistently applied. This basis included'personnel cost aliocations which are based on the estimates of
time and effart. '

otriby rvic
The value of contributed service of transit drivers is inciuded in these statements. The.value of
contributed services of other volunteers is not reflacted in these statements since there is no objective
measurement available for such services.

Estimates
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparmg financial statements, Those estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and reported revenues and expenses.

11
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COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FORi SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION
- CT L NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
"~ SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

" NOTE2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLLCIES (continued)

Advertising
The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Risks and Uncertainti
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of the COVID-18 virus a global -
‘pandemic as it spread rapidly throughout-the world and still continues to spread. The virus negatively '
impacted COAST's operations, such as lower ridership, a shortage of bus operators and 2 subsequent
service suspension of some fixed bus routes. Marlagement has evoived with the pandemicin aneffort . -
to support its employees and riders. -

In an effort to counter the virus’ negative impact on operations, COAST has received federal funding to
support its operations during the pandemic. o

COAST continues to closely monitor the situation.| Depending on the severity and duration of the
: pandemic, COAST could continue to experience additional negative impacts to operations; however, the -
.. —--extent of the future.impact.cannot.be ,reasonablyjestimated.at.this.tirne. N P g

- oam

.- NOTE 3: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects the Organization’s financial assets as of the balance sheet date, reduced by
amounts not available to meet cash needs for ger{eral expenditures within one year. The Organization’s
working capital and cash flows have variations during the year primarily due to the inconsistent
collections of accounts receivable.

As part of the Organization's liquidity management plan, funds in excess of general requirements are
invested in a meney market account.

financial assets at year-end: : 2022 - 2021
Cash and equivalents | S$ 1,975,763 $ 1,494,157 -
Accounls and granls receivable 671,237 (08,543

Total S 2,647,000 S5 2,102,700

12
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.. CODPERATIVE ALUANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION
' ' NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMB!ER 30, 2022

' ~NOTE 4: CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

COAST maintains accounts with First Seacoast Bank and TD Bank that at times exceed the Federal

. ‘Deposit Insurance Carporation {FDIC} limit of 5250 000, At September 30, 2022, the bank balances for e

e each institution totated $1,170,812 and $308, 782' respectively.

_“The majority of the funding for COAST is received directly from the Federal Gavernment. Accounts
" receivable at September 30, 2022 includes $442, 024 from the Federal Government and a totat of .

~~$129,300 from the states of New Hampshire and Ma:ne

S " | +
o §tru,_c_t,ures and equipment consist of the following components at September 30, 2022 and 2021, .

2022 2021
Structures, land and leasehold improvements $ 1,576,603 $ 1,289,291 )
—--.«EquiDf_n,ent-,-!ehig_e_s,-gﬂn_tl;jurnifgfeef_;; v e e 9364493 00 o BB - i
" Amenities and miscellaneous . 693,794 642,140 .
B 11,634,850 10,113,872
-~ Accumulated depreciation e (7,427,937) {7,503,416)

S 4,206,913 $ 2,610,456

Included in these figures are three vehicles which lare not currently used in operations by COAST. The
vehicles are used by community agencies in the provision of transit services for the eiderly and disabled.
COAST retains the title to these vehicles and would take possession of the vehicles if these services were
to cease. At September 30, 2022 and 2021, these vehicles are fully depreciated.

NOTE 6: REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

COAST recognizes conditional income from gra nts as services are provided and conditions are met,
Funds received in advance are recorded as refundable advances.

|
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" COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION
' ..NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEM BIER 30, 2022
!

" NOTE 7: OPERATIONS

_~ Transit operation expenditures are detailed in the Supplemental Data “Grant Expenditures - Operating
--. Grants.” Costs are recorded in accordance with tITe FTA as set forth in its National Transit Database )

_Uniform System of Accounts. Reimbursement rates are 50%, 80% or 100%. Preventive maintenance and

' facility expenses are included In maintenance. W

of}

i ._{\_I_O'[E 8: PENSION PLAN

" COAST has a SIMPLE pension plan. The orgamzanon matches employee contributions up to three
percent of salaries. The cost for the years ended Septemher 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, wece

. 646,148 and $41,631. » i

" NOTE 9: CONYINGENT LIABILITIES

~COAST reccives-moncy-from the-federal-govérnm:ent under grants—~tndertheterms of-these-grants,
" COAST is required to use the money within the gr:ant period for purposes specified in the grant

- proposals. If the expenditures of the grant were fpund not to be in compliance with the proposal, COAST '

. might be required to repay the grantor's funds. The federal government also has an interest in RAT,
" equipment purchased with federal funds. Because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined -~

by grantor agency audits as of September 30, 2022, no provision has been made for this contingency, - -

NOTE 10;: COLLABORATION

|
During the year ended September 30, 2009, COAST and Stafford Netwark {a nonprofit organization)
formed a working committee known as the Alliance for Community Transportation (ACT} for the
purposes of establishing and advancing a transportation brokerage network in the area. COAST has
agreed to receive grant funding and provide human resource and oversight of the Manager of
Coordination Planning and Operations. COAST allso provides dispatch and operational support.
Expenditures for this project in the amount of $450,033, and related revenue of $496,212, are included
in the financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2022.

‘14




" .COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION
o T . NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S seprmasa 30, 2022

'NOTE 11: COMMITMENTS

mmt
For the year ended September 30, 2021, COAST was engaged In a tenancy-at-will agreement for the
rental of its office facilities. COAST incurred net rent expense of $27,000 and was allotted
contributions from the Lessor in the amount of $3,000. The lease also called for COAST to pay a pro
rata share of the utilities and internal maintenéance and repairs.

Starting October 1, 2021, COAST entered into ;la new three-year lease for its office facilities. The lease .
includes the right to terminate the lease withaut cause upon at least a ninety days’ written notice to '
the Lessor. The market value of the leased space is 52,550 per month and the Lessor agrees to
provide a $250 per month contribution towards the market value. COAST owes a net monthly
payment of $2,300. COAST will continue to pa[y a pro rata share of utilities and internal maintenance
and repairs. For the year ended September 30 2022, COAST incurred net rent expense of $27,600
and was aliotted $3,000 in contributions from the Lessor. COAST continues to pay 2 pro rata share of -
utilities and internal maintenance and repairs. :

) _Future | rmrurnum Iease payments for the subselquent flSC3| year ends are as follows:
: 2023 S 30, 600

2024 30,600
S 61,200

nstructign of New Facili mitm

COAST is in the planning process of the consteuction of a new 48,000 square foot facility to house its
transit operations and administrative offices. ;rhe estimated cost of the new facility is approximately
$15,000,000. Funds for the project will come from a blend of sources, including up to $12,000,000 in
Federa! Transit Authority {FTA) capital grants, which will require $3,000,000 in matching funds. COAST
is in the process of raising the matching funds;

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022,* COAST has been awarded $449,600 in federal grants,
of which-COAST has drawn down $246,195, or 80% of its 5307,744 In related expenditures.

15




5 COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEM I|3ER 30, 2022

"~ "NOTE 12: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through Pecember 24, 2022, which is the date the financial

_ statements were available to be issued. |

The COVID-19 virus is still present in the United States Future potential impacts caused by the virus may k

include additional disruptions or restrictions on the COAST's ability to serve its riders: however, the o :
related financial impact. and duration cannot be rieasonablv estimated at this time. Ty
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: |
- COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR ‘SEACOAST TRANSPDRTAT!ON

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

* FOR THE YEAR ENDEID SEPTEMBER 30, 2022
!
|

. Gran ;gxgengs;urgs Oggrating Grant

| | =S - Admin.

istration
Total & Total
" Transit Maintenance QOperations Fundraising  Expenses
" Drivers’ salaries $.1,294,000 |S. - 51294 000 $ . - $1,294,000
" Operations and administrative salaries ~ 763,858 ! -’ 317,656 11,081,534 .437,935 1,519,449
.~ Payroll taxes .77 ass230 |l - 24,657 - 179,887 - 31,906 | 211,793
.. Benefits ot 525,412 | 0 -312,190 - . 637,602 150,895 788,497
Insurance and other fees - ..~ 46205 | " 5666 . 51871 |..480,292 532,163
- Advertising el 8219 T . T 6279 07134013 - 140,292
- Consulling serviges L L3nen o « .. 3090  .433RS . 4RA475
_Mechanicalservices - .. .. | | -6,744 - 62,744 - - 62,794
. Other services 59,345 | 117,047 . 76,392 . -21,807 . . 98,199
. " Facilities cleaning s i ’ 17,261 - . 17,261 - .- 17,261
 Fuelfoil —.. coe 530,066 Lo - 539,366. . .. : 530,166 .
‘Tires, partsand supplies | .- 39,262 | .- 145849 " 185111 . . - 185211 E -
" Occupancy G e of 45,049 45,049 - 30,600 . 75,649 T
-+ Dues and subscriptions. ey, W 925 Lo e e 825 -7 9319 '_'10,244
Travel and training -+~ © 10660 . - 1066 5102 - - 6168
Telephone B 14,863 | 1,239 16,102 ' 6,013 22,115
Office supplies 30,586 130 30,726 11,411 42,137
Depreciation 773,276 12,950 786,226 2,003 788,229
Total Expenditures $4,252,573 |$ 762,438 $5,015011 $1,364,681 6,379,692
———————— =}
| Federal Match
| © NH-2020-002 $ 694,604
NH-2020-005 1,848,556
NH-2021-012 1,083,097
NH-2021-012 665,682
: Total Match  $ 4,291,939

See Notes to Financlal Statements
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" COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION
-~ SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
. " FOR THE YEAR enoelo SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

. Administrative Expendituses. -~ -

" Salarics
" Payroll taxes

. Consulting services

Program Expenditures . ..

", Salarles

-+ Payroll taxes
. Benefits
" Advertising

- Total Expenditures .

s = - s s '-—-“—h_ B
. "Other services - providers ~ "~ -
L Docuprancy e

_ ’ . Grant Exggngi;gl res - Other Grants

e Financial &
* ACT Regional Strategic Total
Coordination Planning Qperations
s . $ 10761 $ 10761
T - 8s1 891
- 2,879 2,879
L. 199714 : 199,714
14,9§6 ., 14,966
60,459 - 60,459
1,241 - 1,241
" 161507 T TR 07
12.14C . 12,146
L8 450,033 3 14531 S 464,564
Federal Match
NH-2020-002 S 11,625
11,625
Pass-Through State of t\iew Hampshire
NH-1385-2019 451,228
Total Match & 462,853

See Notes to Financlal Statements
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. COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR'SEACOAST TRANSPORTATION

- SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

o F "_FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

21 .Capitat Expenditures

.+ Structures and improvements. .. _- '
i = e . X 2,071,246

.7 . Equipment
Software

2 - Total Expenditures . s

. Federal Match
- NH-2020-002
. NH-2021-012 o
i _ NH-2022:0160 0 e i ST

T yotal Match

A LRSS, 8 e o erre——

Grant Exgendi;gr'gs - Capital Grants

$ 307,744
55,972

$ 1,532,156
i 118,342
.4 e 206,195,

S 1,897,693

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COAST BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONTACT INFORMATION - As of October 1, 2022
|

= '-...';,","}th

By a1 i' vyt wiony

S .Name.-'ﬂ!le qlmuu ln!nrma:jrm Bt B 1o
TN e .

. DENNIS SHANAHAN, Chur
City Councilor, Cily of Dover
MICHAEL SCALA Vice Chair

{ Roche: fochester, NH
Director of Economic Development Gltvel R e, e 010
SCOTY BOGLE, Treasurer Rockingham Planning
Durham, NH

Senior Transportation Planner, RPC Commission R R0
MARGARET JOYCE, Secretary |

President, Gir Oover Chamber of Commerce AresICamberaflCo '?e Hoitingham, M 2020

DAVE SANDMANN, Past Chair z Iariargs [ Greentand, HH 201

At-Large Member

T s TR

g {BOARD OF DGRE(.TORS SO
gty YLk i T
Name. 'I'lﬂc Contacl lnfomation~---~ -‘_-w-m‘;-ncprc.en g ol "“fl.- e c;....,..m.

Town of Rcsid:m:v.. » ....‘.u “ir =
24

PR 0«,’ é Wl L ol AN TN R e BATER Y [
SONEE DO UT Town of Newmarket I Newmarket, NH 021
Newmarket Resident |
BEMJAMIN FLETCHER
City of Ports; th North H ton, NH 2021
Director of Parking fye ik FOIon _
ROBERT GIBSON' i (LB
h N
City Councllor ity of Somerswort | Somersworth, NK 101
LAUREN HALEY
Sodial Warker akiEsge Rochester, NH 2021
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JEFF DONALD

. PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

- COAST, Dover, NH 2013 - Present
" . Regional Mobility Manager
", . Manage TripLink, a regional call center that handles ride requests from seniors and individuails with disabilities
- . ..on behalf of ACT, COAST, Ready Rides, Rockingham INUlﬂ'liOT\ & Meals on Wheels, and the Community Action
_ Parinership of Strafford County. Recruit additional partner agencies (o reduce overhead costs and provide
"gseamless service for ransportalion users. Develop business rules and poficies for new partners. TripLink's
. "_setvice partners provided over 27,000 rides in FY20. |
. s _Provide staff support lor the mulli-agency Regional Coordination Council for Community Transportation for
' _Southeastern NH (Alliance for Communily Transpolnation). including selling the agenda and moderating
" council discussions. Regional Coordination Councils around: the state work to Improve their regions’
" iransportation networks by helplng transportation pro:viders coordinate and coflaborate. Qur region's work if
j often highlighted for the success of TripLink, a regional transportation call center.
" » "Manage a $500,000 budget, including applying for federal grants. Apply for philanthropic, municipal, and
.... -county grants and develop other income streams to;serve as local malch to Federal Transit Adminisiration
. .grants, | '
-« - Leader in stalewide wark on transportation coordinatipn, cumently chairing the State Coordinating Council for
-+ Community Transportation’s Regional Mobility Manager subcommittee, serving on the NH Alliance for Healthy
. . Aging’s Transportation Workgroup, launching a volunteer driver program networking group, and sitting on the
"Endowment for Heafth's Advisory Council. The Ef:\dowmenl for Health is a statewide, private, nonprofit
“foundation dedicated to improving the health of New Hampshire's people, especially those who are vuinerable
- - and undcrscrved: . . - .
- » - Provide travel training for seniors and individuals with'disabilities to reduce barriers lo accessing the lixed.route ..
bus system and demand response services. .

.

. COAST, Dover, NH 2011 - 2013
. Assistant Manager of Coordination :
"« ' Worked with the Manager of Coordination as staff suppont for ACT, the Regional Coordination Councit for
.- . Community Transpontation for Southeastern NH, col'mprising many of the region's communily (ransportation
.-~ providers, social service agencies, and community hlealth centers, and covering 38 communities.
. Fostered the development of volunteer driver programs throughaut the region by providing technical assistance
"and stafl support to grassrools supponers, including municipal staff, faith communilies, and aclive
.communities. One such group, Ready Rides, lc>eganl| providing transportation services in February 2013.
s . Updaled service gap analysis of all 38 municipalities’ transportation resources. s
Recruited riders and volunteer drivers for COAST's North Bus, a wheelchair accessible minibus providing ..~
access to grocery stores, pharmacies, and shoppinglI to rural towns north of Rochester. Aol SRS

. STOUT OAK FARM, Brentwood, NH | 2010 - Present

- .Go-Owner

© » Co-owner of an organic vegetable farm that distributes.l‘. ils produce through a CSA, a farm store, farmers’ markel, .
' and sales to local reslaurants and homes via the Thrlee River Farmers Alliance. .
. -= - Assist farm manager in capilal and markeling planning and decision-making.

-.e Management of mini-orchard and land stewardship.

" NH CENTER FOR NONPROFITS, Concord, NH 2010 - 2011

" Program Coordinator

s - Successfully coordinated approximalely 70 workshops and 4 conferences. TYhis included the 3-day New
. .Hampshire Grants institute and an annual Leadership Summit.

»  Assisted the IT Direclor in improving the accuracy, n"eliability. and functionalily of the primary database in which
ali pertinent information was held. This improved,—d?la enlry {ime and decreased errors. i i
"« " Drafted press releases and promotional emails o dlrive even! attendance.




- Recognition received: Outstanding Part-Time M.P.A. Student, 2007

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

" "RACE AND EQUITY IN NH SERIES 2020 — present
.- Government Workgroup Member T
- .« Serve on the Government Workgroup to help identify objectives for action plans to impact race and equily e

statewide.
" . ENDOWMENT FOR HEALTH, Concord, NH ; 2019 — present
Adv:sory Council Member
- ». ' Represent Strafford County on the Advisory Council to provide input on existing service needs and communlty .
' issues.
- CONSERVATION COMMISSION, Brentwood, NH ] 2013 - 2108

Member Chair

' "« " Represented the inlerests of local agricullure and conservation landowners on the Brentwood Conservalion

- . Commission.
+ Helped determine if the town should issue wetltand permtts and how funding should be spent on conservauon} L

projects. |

.-« Began serving as Chair of the Conservation Commission as of April 2017.

SEACOAST EAT LOCAL, Newington, NH 2006 - 2012
~Secretary, Board of Direclors
« . Served on the board of a mostly volunteer organization, helping to pubhsh Seacoast Harvest, votunleenng at
. the winter farmers’ markets, and working collaborahyeiy with similar organizations.
.. Participated in [qng_f_a;_s_:,qg,_ strategic planning, and was a founding board member.

EDUCEATION
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Universlty of New Hampshire, Durham NH

Master of Public Administration
internship: Rockingham Pianning Commission

B.A., French, minor in Political Science

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Strengthening Your Facilitation Skitls Workshop, UNH Cooperative Extension, 2017
introduction to Basic Project Management, UNH Profess:onal Development & Training, 2016
Certified Communily Transit Manager, 2014
intra to Travel Tralning, 2014

Community Transportation Association of America Conference 2012 - 2014, 2016, 2018 ;
Volunteer Management Training Series (VMTS) Points of Light Institute, 2012

New England Grassroots Environment Fund RootSkills - Group Skills & Development, 2011

NH Grants Instilute, 2009
New Englang Grassroots Environment Fund Retreat - Grants and Donor Fundraising Workshop, 2008




